
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL 

Date: 
 

TUESDAY, 26 MARCH 2013 

Venue: 
 

LANCASTER TOWN HALL 

Time: 6.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 January 2013 (previously circulated).    
  
3. Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chairman  
 
4. Declaration of Interests  
 
 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.   

  
  
5. Salt Ayre Sports Centre (Pages 1 - 7) 
 
 Report of Head of Community Engagement.  
  
6. Corporate Performance and Financial Monitoring - Quarter 3 2012/13 (Pages 8 - 30) 
 
 Report of Assistant Head, Community Engagement (Partnerships) and Financial Services 

Manager.   
  
7. Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 (Pages 31 - 59) 
 
 Report of the Head of Resources.  
  



 

8. The Effect of the Current Economic Climate and Changes to Planning Legislation 
on Related Revenue Coming into the Council (Pages 60 - 63) 

 
 Report of the Head of Regeneration and Planning.  
  
9. Work Programme Report (Pages 64 - 67) 
 
 Report of the Head of Governance.   
  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Susan Sykes (Chairman), Alycia James (Vice-Chairman), Tony Anderson, 

Dave Brookes, Janet Hall, Roger Mace, Richard Newman-Thompson, Elizabeth Scott and 
Keith Sowden 
 

 
(ii) Substitute Membership 

 
 Councillors Chris Coates, Mike Greenall, Richard Rollins, Roger Sherlock, Emma Smith 

and Paul Woodruff 
 

 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Tom Silvani, Democratic Services - telephone 01524 582132 or email 

tsilvani@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Monday 18 March 2013.   

 



 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL  
 

Salt Ayre Sports Centre  
 

26 March 2013 

Report of Head of Community Engagement and 
Assistant Head (Wellbeing)  

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To update members on the continuing work in relation to the performance of Salt Ayre sports 
centre. 

This report is public 

 
 
Recommendations: 
 

(1) That the report be noted and that Members consider any comments they 
would wish to make. 

 

Introduction 

1.1 Following a previous report on Salt Ayre Sports Centre presented to the 23 
October 2012 meeting and a subsequent report to the 12th December 2012 
meeting the following resolutions remain outstanding: 

(1) That the additional report include financial information regarding the 
amounts spent on leisure centres by other local authorities in the North 
West, in order that comparisons might be made with expenditure by 
Lancaster City Council on Salt Ayre Sports Centre. 

 
(2) That officers be requested to look at the various headings to consider a 

reduction of up to 5% (by way of example) with particular emphasis on the 
management and admin costs in such a way that it does not negatively 
impact on service provision. 

 
(3) That information regarding the marketing and advertising of Salt Ayre 
Sports Centre be included in the report scheduled to be considered by the 
Panel on 5th March 2013   

 
1.2 Accordingly this report concerns itself with the above resolutions and 

additionally sets out the latest position in relation to the ongoing review of Salt 
Ayre Sports Centre. 

 
1.3 As was stated in the report to members in December, there is not a statutory 

requirement to provide leisure services. To do so is discretionary. However, 
the Council has identified the importance of providing leisure services to 
achieve its priorities around Health and Wellbeing and Clean Green Safe 
places 

 
1.4 It is recognized that the health and wellbeing of local residents of all ages is 

improved by participation in sports and leisure activities. Health inequalities 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



stop people achieving their potential. Poor health and wellbeing prevents 
many citizens from working, learning, being involved in their community and 
enjoying their leisure time. Reduced productivity due to poor health also has a 
negative impact on the local economy. As such members have chosen to 
subsidise the cost of services provided at Salt Ayre Sports Centre 

 

2 Report 

Salt Ayre Sports Centre: Performance Comparison 

2.1 The sports centre is a member of the Association for Public Service 
Excellence (APSE) and as such submits benchmarking data each year for 
comparison against similar size facilities. This is not an exact science 
however, as facilities classed as being similar enough to be included within the 
appropriate ‘family’ grouping will always have some differences.  

 
2.2 Set out in Appendices A and B are some of the current key indicators for the 

service and the current performance levels for similar sites. 
 
2.3 The predominant indicators linked to income generation and usage are all in 

the bottom two quartiles, which would indicate that there is room for  
improvement at the site as far as usage and spend are concerned. 2011/12 
figures are an improvement on 2010/11 indicating that the centre is travelling 
in the right direction although further improvements are needed. 

 
2.4 The performance indicators suggest that a number of key areas should be 

examined: 
 

• PI 31 (usage per opening hour) would suggest that the centre reviews its 
current opening hours in direct relation to attendance during those hours, or 
targets specific programmes or activities during the hours when the centre is 
at its quietest.  

• The centre has already taken some action regarding staffing levels which 
could impact significantly on PI 07 (staff cost per admission) in the future. 

• P1 21 (customer spend per head) would suggest there is potential to review 
the café and catering areas with a view to increasing income generation 
within that specific area. 
In general, there is room for improvement on costs, which are relatively high, 
and usage, which is low in comparison to its family group members.  

 
2.5 Benchmarking with the best performers is something that Salt Ayre has 

already started to undertake. This needs to be pursued in order to learn from 
best practice.  A number of neighbouring authorities have not been included 
owing to the differing nature of the ranges of facilities at the sites. The sites 
included in Appendix B have been chosen deliberately due to their similarity 
to Salt Ayre Sports Centre and therefore broadly provide like for like 
comparators. 

 

Management and Administration Cost Reduction 

2.6 Members will be aware that as part of the budget process for 2013/14 
consideration was given to the current operating costs of Salt Ayre sports 
centre. As a result a review of the opening times and associated shift patterns 
has led to a saving of £75,000 in 2013/14. These changes were approved by 
Cabinet at its meeting on the 12 March 2013 (min. no. 132 refers).  The figure 
of £75k for next financial year equates approximately to a reduction of 5% 
against the management and administration cost centre. 

 

 

Page 2



Marketing and Advertising 

2.7 Salt Ayre Sports Centre is marketed in-house by the city council’s 
communications and marketing team.  Marketing activities are primarily 
carried out by a dedicated marketing officer, based at the sports centre one 
day per week who is also responsible for marketing and promoting other 
leisure/sport based activity from across the council. 

 
2.8 As with all services the key marketing aims are set in agreement with the 

relevant service and for the past year they are as follows: 
 

• Increase the number of customers using the sports centre facilities and 
support the centre in achieving their income targets.  

• Maintain Reflexions gym memberships and deliver a number of specific 
campaigns throughout the year 

• Raise the profile of Salt Ayre Sports Centre, its role as a community 
resource and of the many events that take place throughout the year. 
Ensure that the venue maximises its role within our community. 

• Increase the level of internal communications with current Salt Ayre 
members and users, encourage feedback and cross-market other 
facilities, events and products to them. 

• Improve internal marketing and raise the profile of Salt Ayre Sports 
Centre within our organisation with colleagues and elected members. 

 

2.9 For 2012/13 budgets were allocated for each area of marketing activity (within 
the overall marketing budget) to ensure that marketing officers are able to 
effectively plan their activities and ensure the overall marketing spend 
remains within budget.  A range of promotional material will be on display at 
the meeting. 

 
2.10 For 2012/13 the overall budget for Salt Ayre is £6,400, but with the flexibility 

for additional resources within the overall marketing budget if they have not 
been allocated elsewhere (for instance where there is an underspend on 
another portfolio area) in order that opportunities are not missed and/or where 
new projects come on stream that require an element of marketing resources.  

 
2.11 In addition the centre benefited from the council’s corporate radio advertising 

account (from January 2012) with Bay Radio.  Adverts ran every three 
months at key times. Based on the cost of the package, the value received by 
the centre was £2,468.   

 
2.12 In addition to paid for advertising in the local media, Salt Ayre benefits from 

advertising by way of news articles in the local press. The value of these 
articles can be measured in terms of how much it would cost to place a 
similar sized advert, or EAV (Equivalent Advertising Value). So far in 2012/13 
the EAV for Salt Ayre of articles in the local media is £5,168.  This is in 
addition to other free marketing/advertising provided as part of the council’s 
corporate communications and marketing function. 

 
2.13 Increasingly the focus for Salt Ayre, and marketing of all council services, is 

via the online route and in particular social media. These have particular 
benefits in that the costs of providing the marketing element does not cost 
any more, i.e. the cost of provision is included within the overall corporate 
budget.  They can also be easily evaluated in terms of their reach and the 
number of people interacting with a particular service. 

 
2.14 A Salt Ayre Facebook site was successfully launched in July 2012 and its 

audience has steadily built. Regular messages are posted to update visitors 
on the latest activities and to engage with potential visitors. The regular 

Page 3



weekly reach is now regularly more than 700 people, with the audience 
continuing to build. 

 
2.15 Salt Ayre does not have a dedicated Twitter account but messages are 

posted using the corporate account (@lancastercc).  Mentions of Salt Ayre by 
other users are monitored using the corporate facilities and replied to if a 
reply is necessary (to provide information, respond to customer queries etc). 

 
2.16 The council’s corporate e-newsletter (Connect) regularly features news 

stories from Salt Are and is sent to a database of more than 350 people. 
 
2.17 Salt Ayre’s web presence is within the council’s corporate website.  Since the 

marketing section restructuring a number of improvements have been made 
to both the benefit of the overall customer experience and marketing of the 
venue.  A Google calendar includes all class timetables and is updated 
regularly to ensure that customers can easily access information and are kept 
informed of any changes which occur. 

 
2.18 The main Salt Ayre webpage (www.lancaster.gov.uk/saltayre) is the first port 

of call for visitors wishing to find out more information about the centre.  In 
turn this links to a number of other pages with specific information on a 
particular function (for instance the gym, swimming pool etc). 

 
2.19 Visitor numbers are increasing and in 2011/12 (financial year) the main page 

received a total of 25,021 unique page views. 
 
2.20 The most recent SOCITM (Society of Information Technology Management) 

annual survey of local authority websites show we have retained our 3-star 
rating, missing (by the narrowest possible margin) on the highest possible 4-
star rating. The information relating to the swimming pool was cited as an 
example of national best practice. 

 

Salt Ayre Sports Centre – Ongoing Review 

2.21 Representatives from APSE attended review meetings held at the centre on 
14th and 15th January 2013. Their role was to facilitate and encourage a 
dialogue with staff about the review of Salt Ayre Sports Centre. On the first 
day a workshop was held followed by a day of one to one meetings with 
various staff in order to stimulate further thoughts around improvements.  

2.22 Following on from this a number of project groups have been established to 
look at the following areas : 

• Business planning and performance 
• Alternative business models 
• Customer feedback 
• Marketing / Advertising / Publicity / Promotion  
• Sports Development and community outreach 
• Staffing 
• Café and catering 
• Gym and classes 
 

2.23    The review process is continuing and a range of options will be produced for 
consideration. All options consider how the sports centre could operate more 
efficiently and cohesively, reduce costs and look at opportunities for income 
generation. Initial findings from the review will be made available to members 
during the coming year and it is anticipated that further financial savings will 
feed into budget process in future years. 

 
2.24 During the review process the Active Health programme has been awarded a 

further £90k of funding to continue with the scheme for next financial year. The 

Page 4



relationship with the health sector is a particularly positive one and with the 
introduction of Clinical Commissioning Groups it is hoped that relationship will 
continue. 

 
 

Conclusion 

 Using the APSE performance data as a tool it has been possible to highlight 
current performance and identify key areas for improvement. Some 
improvements have already been implemented and achieved reductions in 
operating costs for future years. There remains further work still to be done 
and the outcomes of that work will be reported to members throughout the 
coming year. 

 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

None arising from this report. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

There are no legal implications arising as a result of this report 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources / Information Services / Property / Open Spaces:  

HR support will be required if there are any further restructuring exercises within the Service 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

 The Deputy Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has nothing further to add  

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has nothing further to add 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Contact Officer: Simon Kirby : Assistant 
head Community Engagement - Wellbeing 
Telephone:  01524 582831 
E-mail:skirby@lancaster.gov.uk  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



APPENDIX A  
 
Performance Indicators  
Key Performance Indicator 
(All sites) 

Highest  in 
service 

Lowest in 
service 

Salt Ayre 
Score 

Quartile 

PI 02a – Subsidy per visit (low 
is good) 

£7.33 -0.41 £1.52 3 

PI 03 –  Operational Recovery 
Ratio 

166.18% 27.00% 61.81% 3 

PI 06 –  Subsidy per opening 
hour (low is good) 

£170.60 -£256.69 £105.10 4 

PI 13 -   Net cost per head of 
population (low is good) 

£5.61 -£6.27 £4.12 4 

PI 20 –  Customer 
Satisfaction performance 
indicator (high is good) 

83.64% 61.60%   No Data 
available 

 

PI 07 –  Staff costs per 
admission 

£7.98 £0.87 £2.24 3 

PI 21 –  Customer spend per 
head (including catering 
income) 

£5.93 £1.07 £2.45 2 

PI 31 –  Usage per opening 
hour 

216.65 14.31 69.34 2 

Note;   PI03 the ‘operational recovery ratio’ is often used as an efficiency measure, assessing 
operational expenditure recovered through customer receipts. 
 
 
 
 Family Group Comparators  
Key Performance Indicator 
(Family Group) 

Highest  in 
service 

Lowest in 
service 

Salt Ayre 
Score 

Quartile 

PI 02a – Subsidy per visit ( 
excluding CEC) 

£2.66 £0.15 £1.52 3 

PI 03 –  Operational Recovery 
Ratio 

93.91% 48.47% 61.81% 3 

PI 06 –  Subsidy per opening 
hour (excluding CEC) 

£170.60 £13.05 £105.10 2 

PI 13 -   Net cost per head of 
population (excluding CEC) 

£5.61 £0.17 £4.12 4 

PI 20 –  Customer 
Satisfaction performance 
indicator 

No Data 
available 

No Data 
available 

No Data 
available 

 

PI 07 –  Staff costs per 
admission 

£3.21 £1.88 £2.24 3 

PI 21 –  Customer spend per 
head (including catering 
income) 

£3.07 £2.27 £2.45 3 

PI 31 –  Usage per opening 
hour 

115.87 46.04 69.34 3 

 
These indicators are useful in terms of analysing trends over a period of time. No two 
centres are exactly alike they do not all provide the same services, populations 
served vary, the extent of wet and dry, indoor or outdoors will vary etc. Caution 
should be taken in using the figures as exact comparators. 

Page 6



APPENDIX B 
 
Similar Specific and Neighbouring Centres 
 
Note: within our family group of leisure centres those identified below represent some 
centres that are some of the most similar to Salt Ayre in terms of scale and services 
provided. 
  
Key Performance 
Indicator  

Salt 
Ayre  

Preston 
West 
View 
LC 

Liverpool 
Lifestyles 
Garston 
 

Grimsby 
Leisure 
Centre 

East 
Riding 
Francis 
Scaife 
SC 

West 
Lindsey 
LC 

PI 02a – Subsidy per 
visit  

£1.52 £0.70 £0.27 £2.20 £0.20 £1.22 

PI 03 –  Operational 
Recovery Ratio 

61.81% 77.94% 89.40% 52.61% 89.76% 65.14% 

PI 06 –  Subsidy per 
opening hour  

£105.10 £69.66 £34.47 £93.32 £13.70 £60.02 

PI 13 -   Net cost per 
head of population  

£4.12 £2.68 £0.37 £3.31 £0.20 £3.66 

PI 07 –  Staff costs 
per admission 

£2.24 £2.05 £1.35 £2.39 £1.25 £2.17 

PI 21 –  Customer 
spend per 
head(including 
catering income) 

£2.45 £2.48 N/A N/A £1.72 £2.27 

PI 31 –  Usage per 
opening hour 

69.34 99.04 126.30 42.43 69.76 49.36 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL  

Corporate Performance and Financial Monitoring - 
Quarter 3 2012/13 

26 March 2013 

Report of Assistant Head, Community Engagement 
(Partnerships) and Financial Services Manager 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To present the corporate performance and financial monitoring reports for Quarter 3 of the 
2012/13 Performance Review Team cycle and progress as at December 2013towards 
delivery of the Corporate Plan 2012 – 15.   

This report is public 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

(1) That Budget and Performance Panel considers this report and makes 
any comments or recommendations as appropriate. 

1.0 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MONITORING – QUARTER 3 

1.1 Quarter 3 Performance Summary reports setting out progress towards the 
delivery of Corporate Plan outcomes and success measures for each Cabinet 
Member’s Portfolio Area were published as scheduled on 21 January 2013, 
together with the Financial Reports for the same period.   

1.2 As well as an update on quarterly measures as at Quarter 3 the report also 
provided commentary on progress towards the delivery of annual measures 
(shaded grey in the attached report) due to be formally reported on in Qtr 4 
when performance for the whole of the Corporate Plan will be reported.  

1.3 The Corporate Plan Performance Review report for Quarter 3 is attached as 
Appendix A   

1.4 There are currently no corporate plan priorities with a Red status – see 
Appendix B.    

1.5 The Corporate Plan Performance Review report specifically indicates 
performance against agreed corporate plan success measures that are now 
explicit and quantifiable measurements (Targets) which quantify achievement 
of, or progress towards, delivery of the Corporate Plan priorities. 

1.6 The Corporate Financial Monitoring report for Quarter 3 is attached as 
Appendix C. 

Agenda Item 6 Page 8



 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

None arising from this report 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

None directly arising from this report 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

None directly arising from this report 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: Human Resources / Information Services / 
Property / Open Spaces:   None directly arising from this report 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add. 

DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Corporate Performance Review 
Team Reports Quarter 3 2012/13 

Contact Officer:  Performance - Bob Bailey, 
Corporate Planning and Performance Manager; 
Finance – Andrew Clarke, Financial Services 
Manager Telephone:  01524 582018/582138 
E-mail: rbailey@lancaster.gov.uk; 
aclarke@lancaster.gov.uk  
Ref: PRT 2012 Qtr 3 

 

Page 9



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

`
äÉ
~å

I d
êÉ
Éå

 ~
å
Ç
 p
~Ñ
É 
m
ä~
ÅÉ

ë
`
l
O 
Éã

áë
ëá
çå

ë 
Ñê
çã

Åç
ìå

Åá
ä ~

Åí
áî
áíá
Éë

 ~
êÉ

êÉ
Çì

ÅÉ
Ç

`
d
p
N 
^
åå

ì~
ä ê
ÉÇ

ìÅ
íáç

å
áå
 Å
~ê
Äç

å 
Éã

áë
ëá
çå

ë
PK
QB

é~
 E
PQ

B
 Ä
ó 
OM

OM
F

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

a
~å

 t
çç

Ç
q
áã

e
~ã

áäí
çå

J`
çñ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ÜÉ

 Å
ìê
êÉ
åí
 É
ëí
áã

~í
Éë

 ë
ìÖ

ÖÉ
ëí

íÜ
~í
 íÜ

É 
`
~ê
Äç

å 
a
áç
ñá
ÇÉ

Éã
áë
ëá
çå

ë 
Ñê
çã

 íÜ
É 
Åç

ìå
Åá
äë

ã
ìå

áÅ
áé
~ä
 Ä
ìá
äÇ
áå
Öë

 Ñç
ê 
íÜ
É

Åì
êê
Éå

í ó
É~

ê 
~ê
É 
MK
PT

B
 äç

ï
Éê

íÜ
~å

 ~
í í
ÜÉ

 ë
~ã

É 
ëí
~Ö

É 
ä~
ëí

óÉ
~ê
K e

çï
Éî

Éê
I á
åÑ
çê
ã
~í
áç
å 
Ñç
ê

~ä
ä ë

áíÉ
ë 
áë
 å
çí
 Å
ìê
êÉ
åí
äó

~î
~á
ä~
Ää
É 
ëç

 íÜ
áë
 Ñá
Öì

êÉ
 áë

 äá
âÉ

äó
íç
 Å
Ü~

åÖ
ÉK
 fí
 áë

 ÑÉ
äí 
íÜ
~í
 íÜ

É
êÉ
Çì

Åí
áç
å 
áë
 äç

ï
Éê
 íÜ

~å
 áå

éê
Éî

áç
ìë

 ó
É~

êë
 Ç
ìÉ

 íç
î~

êá~
íáç

åë
 áå

 ï
É~

íÜ
Éê

Åç
åÇ

áíá
çå

ë 
EO
MN

NL
NO

 ï
~ë

 ~
å

ìå
ìë

ì~
ääó
 ï
~ê
ã
 ó
É~

êF
K q

ÜÉ
êÉ
Çì

Åí
áç
å 
áå
 `

l
O 
Éã

áë
ëá
çå

ë
Äì

í ~
å 
áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

 É
åÉ

êÖ
ó

Åç
åë

ìã
éí
áç
å 
áë
 Ç
ìÉ

 íç
î~

êá~
íáç

åë
 áå

 Ñì
Éä
 ì
ë~

ÖÉ
 áK
ÉK

Å~
êÄ
çå

 Ç
áç
ñá
ÇÉ

 É
ã
áë
ëá
çå

ë 
~ê
É

äç
ï
Éê
 Ñç

ê 
Ö~

ë 
Åç

åë
ìã

éí
áç
å

íÜ
~å

 Ñç
ê 
Éå

Éê
Öó

 Å
çå

ëì
ã
éí
áç
åK

`
d
p
P 
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 ~
îÉ

ê~
ÖÉ

p
^
m
 ê
~í
áå
Ö 
áå
 Å
çì

åÅ
áä

Üç
ã
Éë

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

`
Üê
áë
 e

~å
å~

h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

_
ìÇ

ÖÉ
í Ñ
çê
 O
MN

OL
NP

 áë
>
QS

MI
MM

MK
 o

Éé
ä~
ÅÉ

ã
Éå

í ç
Ñ

Ö~
ë 
ÅÉ

åí
ê~
ä Ü

É~
íáå

Ö 
Äç

áäÉ
êë

íÜ
~í
 ~
êÉ
 Å
çã

áå
Ö 
íç
 íÜ

É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ

íÜ
Éá
ê 
ìë

ÉÑ
ìä
 äá
ÑÉ
I ï

ÜÉ
êÉ

Äê
É~

âÇ
çï

åë
 ~
êÉ
 Ñê
Éè

ìÉ
åí
 ~
åÇ

é~
êí
ë 
~ê
É 
Çá
ÑÑá
Åì

äí 
íç
 ç
Äí
~á
åK

_
ìÇ

ÖÉ
í >

QM
MI
MM

MX
 p
éÉ

åÇ
 ]

UL
NL
OM

NP
 >
OR

NI
ON

NK
o
Éé

ä~
ÅÉ

ã
Éå

í ç
Ñ Å

çã
ã
ìå

~ä
Äç

áäÉ
êë
 ï
áíÜ

 Ü
áÖ
Ü 
ÉÑ
ÑáÅ

áÉ
åÅ

ó
Äç

áäÉ
êë
 ~
í h

áå
Öë

ï
~ó

 p
ÜÉ

äíÉ
êÉ
Ç

e
çì

ëá
åÖ

 p
ÅÜ

Éã
ÉK
 _
ìÇ

ÖÉ
í

>
SM

IM
MM

  J
 ï
çê
âë

 Å
çã

éä
Éí
ÉÇ

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
N 
çÑ
 N
O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 10



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

`
äÉ
~å

I d
êÉ
Éå

 ~
å
Ç
 p
~Ñ
É 
m
ä~
ÅÉ

ë
`
çì

åÅ
áäD
ë 
Éå

Éê
Öó

 ì
ë~

ÖÉ
 áë

êÉ
Çì

ÅÉ
Ç

`
d
p
O 
o
ÉÇ

ìÅ
É 
Éå

Éê
Öó

ìë
~Ö

É 
~Å

êç
ëë

 i
`
`

Äì
áäÇ

áå
Öë

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

a
~å

 t
çç

Ç
q
áã

e
~ã

áäí
çå

J`
çñ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ÜÉ

 Å
ìê
êÉ
åí
 É
ëí
áã

~í
Éë

 ë
ìÖ

ÖÉ
ëí

íÜ
~í
 É
åÉ

êÖ
ó 
Åç

åë
ìã

éí
áç
å 
Ñç
ê

íÜ
É 
ã
ìå

áÅ
áé
~ä
 Ä
ìá
äÇ
áå
Öë

 Ñç
ê 
íÜ
É

Åì
êê
Éå

í ó
É~

ê 
~ê
É 
PK
NS

B
 Ü
áÖ
ÜÉ

ê
íÜ
~å

 ~
í í
ÜÉ

 ë
~ã

É 
ëí
~Ö

É 
ä~
ëí

óÉ
~ê
K e

çï
Éî

Éê
I á
åÑ
çê
ã
~í
áç
å 
Ñç
ê

~ä
ä ë

áíÉ
ë 
áë
 å
çí
 Å
ìê
êÉ
åí
äó

~î
~á
ä~
Ää
É 
ëç

 íÜ
áë
 Ñá
Öì

êÉ
 áë

 äá
âÉ

äó
íç
 Å
Ü~

åÖ
ÉK
 fí
 áë

 ÑÉ
äí 
íÜ
~í

áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 ç
å 
íÜ
É 
éê
Éî

áç
ìë

óÉ
~ê
ë 
áë
 Ç
ìÉ

 íç
 î
~ê
á~
íáç

åë
 áå

ï
É~

íÜ
Éê
 Å
çå

Çá
íáç

åë
 E
OM

NN
LN
O

ï
~ë

 ~
å 
ìå

ìë
ì~

ääó
 ï
~ê
ã
 ó
É~

êF
K

q
ÜÉ

 ê
ÉÇ

ìÅ
íáç

å 
áå
 `

~ê
Äç

å
a
áç
ñá
ÇÉ

 É
ã
áë
ëá
çå

ë 
Äì

í ~
å

áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

 É
åÉ

êÖ
ó

Åç
åë

ìã
éí
áç
å 
áë
 Ç
ìÉ

 íç
î~

êá~
íáç

åë
 áå

 Ñì
Éä
 ì
ë~

ÖÉ
 áK
ÉK

Å~
êÄ
çå

 Ç
áç
ñá
ÇÉ

 É
ã
áë
ëá
çå

ë 
~ê
É

äç
ï
Éê
 Ñç

ê 
Ö~

ë 
Åç

åë
ìã

éí
áç
å

íÜ
~å

 Ñç
ê 
Éå

Éê
Öó

 Å
çå

ëì
ã
éí
áç
åK

få
Åç

ã
É 
ÖÉ

åÉ
ê~
íÉ
Ç

íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
Åä
áã

~í
É 
ÅÜ

~å
ÖÉ

ã
áíá
Ö~

íáç
å 
~å

Ç 
~Ç

~é
í~
íáç

å
éê
çà
ÉÅ

íë
 Ñç

ê 
êÉ
áå
îÉ

ëí
áå
Ö

áå
íç
 íÜ

É 
áå
îÉ

ëí
 íç

 ë
~î

É
Ñì
åÇ

`
d
p
Q 
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

 íÜ
É

åì
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 ~
ääç

íã
Éå

í é
äç
íë

áå
 íÜ

É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

m
~ì

ä `
çÅ

âÉ
ê

a
~î

áÇ
 p
ã
áíÜ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

p
íáä
ä é

êç
Öê
Éë

ëá
åÖ

 íÜ
É

ÇÉ
îÉ

äç
éã

Éå
í ç

Ñ å
Éï

 ~
ääç

íã
Éå

í
ëé

~Å
É 
~í
 p
Åç

íÑç
êí
ÜK
  m

êç
éÉ

êí
ó

ëÉ
êî
áÅ
Éë

 ~
êÉ
 å
ÉÖ

çí
á~
íáå

Ö 
íç

Éå
Ç 
íÜ
É 
Åì

êê
Éå

í ä
É~

ëÉ
 ç
å 
íÜ
É

ä~
åÇ

K
`
d
p
Q 
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 B

 ç
Ñ

Üç
ìë

ÉÜ
çä
Ç 
ï
~ë

íÉ
 ê
Éì

ëÉ
ÇI

êÉ
Åó
Åä
ÉÇ

 ç
ê 
Åç

ã
éç

ëí
ÉÇ

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

m
Éí
Éê
 q
~ó

äç
ê

a
~î

áÇ
 p
ã
áíÜ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

QR
KM
B

QQ
KU
B

^
ã
ÄÉ

ê
k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

^
ë 
~í
 n

íê
 P
 íÜ

É 
`
çì

åÅ
áä 
Ü~

ë
~ä
ã
çë

í ~
ÅÜ

áÉ
îÉ

Ç 
áíë

 í~
êÖ
Éí
 Ñç

ê
íÜ
É 
ï
Üç

äÉ
 ó
É~

ê 
çÑ
 Q
RB

`
d
p
Q 
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
áå
Åç

ã
É

Ñê
çã

 É
åÉ

êÖ
ó 
~å

Ç
êÉ
Åó
Åä
áå
Ö 
éê
çà
ÉÅ

íë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

a
~å

 t
çç

Ç
q
áã

e
~ã

áäí
çå

J`
çñ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

N
QI
SM

V
d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
Üá
ë 
ÑáÖ

ìê
É 
áå
Åä
ìÇ

Éë
 íÜ

É 
åÉ

ï
ëá
íÉ
ë 
~í
 íÜ

É 
s
~ä
É 
ï
áíÜ

 íÜ
É

Éñ
ÅÉ

éí
áç
å 
çÑ
 íÜ

É 
áå
ëí
~ä
~í
áç
å 
~í

_
êç
åí
É 
e
çì

ëÉ
K e

çï
Éî

Éê
I

áå
Åç

ã
É 
Ñê
çã

 _
êç
åí
É 
e
çì

ëÉ
 Ñç

ê
n
íê
 P
 ï
áää
 Ä
É 
~î

~á
ä~
Ää
É 
Ñç
ê

êÉ
éç

êí
áå
Ö 
~í
 íÜ

É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ
 n

íê
 Q
K

q
ÜÉ

 áå
Åç

ã
É 
ÖÉ

åÉ
ê~
íÉ
Ç

íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
íÜ
É 
c
ÉÉ

ÇJ
áå
 q
~ê
áÑÑ

Ñê
çã

 íÜ
É 
p
çä
~ê
 m
s
 ë
ÅÜ

Éã
Éë

 ì
é

íç
 íÜ

É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ
 n

íê
 P
 áë

>
OQ

IR
TV

KT
RK

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
O 
çÑ
 N
O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 11



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

`
äÉ
~å

I d
êÉ
Éå

 ~
å
Ç
 p
~Ñ
É 
m
ä~
ÅÉ

ë
l
ìê
 Ç
áë
íê
áÅ
í á
ë 
ë~

ÑÉ
`
d
p
S 
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê
çÑ
 Ç
áî
Éê
ëá
çå

~ê
ó 
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

Ñç
ê 
óç

ìå
Ö 
éÉ

çé
äÉ

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

o
áÅ
Ü~

êÇ
e
~ã

ã
çå

Ç
o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

QN
N

OI
RQ

Q
d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

l
ìê
 ë
íê
ÉÉ

íë
 ~
åÇ

 é
ìÄ

äáÅ
ëé

~Å
Éë

 ~
êÉ
 Å
äÉ
~å

`
d
p
R 
m
Éê
ÅÉ

éí
áç
å 
çÑ

éÉ
çé

äÉ
 íÜ

~í
 Ç
áë
íê
áÅ
í á
ë

ë~
ÑÉ
I á
ë 
áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

^
ã
~å

Ç~
 `

ê~
åÉ

a
~î

áÇ
 p
ã
áíÜ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

a
~í
~L
áå
Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å 
Ñç
ê 
íÜ
áë

ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áë

 å
çí
 ó
Éí
 ~
î~

áä~
Ää
ÉK

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
P 
çÑ
 N
O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 12



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
ó 
i
É~

Ç
Éê
ëÜ

áé
_
Éí
íÉ
ê 
ìå

ÇÉ
êë
í~
åÇ

áå
Ö 
çÑ

Åç
ã
ã
ìå

áíá
Éë

 ~
åÇ

 å
ÉÉ

Çë
ëç

 íÜ
~í
 ë
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

ë 
íÜ
~í

ã
~í
íÉ
ê 
ã
çë

í í
ç 
çì

ê
Åç

ã
ã
ìå

áíá
Éë

 ï
áää
 Ä
É

éê
áç
êáí
áë
ÉÇ

`
iO

 B
 ç
Ñ ä
çÅ

~ä
 ê
Éë

áÇ
Éå

íë
ë~

íáë
ÑáÉ

Ç 
ï
áíÜ

 Å
çì

åÅ
áä

ëÉ
êî
áÅ
Éë

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

gÉ
å 
j
áää
áÖ
~å

b
áäÉ

Éå
 _
ä~
ã
áêÉ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
çí
Üá
åÖ

 íç
 ê
Éé

çê
í Ä

ÉÅ
~ì

ëÉ
Ç~

í~
Láå

Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å 
áë
 å
çí
 ó
Éí

~î
~á
ä~
Ää
ÉK

`
çì

åÅ
áäD
ë 
Ñáå

~å
Åá
~ä

ëí
~å

Çá
åÖ

 ã
~á
åí
~á
åÉ

Ç 
íç

ëì
éé

çê
í Ñ
ìí
ìê
É 
ëÉ

êî
áÅ
É

ÇÉ
äáî
Éê
ó 
~å

Ç 
éä
~å

åá
åÖ

`
iU

 _
~ä
~å

ÅÉ
Ç 
Äì

ÇÖ
Éí
 ë
Éí

Ñç
ê 
OM

NP
LN
Q 
ï
áíÜ

 å
ç 
ã
çê
É

íÜ
~å

 P
KR
B
 áå

Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

Åç
ìå

Åá
ä í
~ñ

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

^
åÇ

êÉ
ï
 `

ä~
êâ
É

^
ÄÄ

çí
í _

êó
åá
åÖ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ÜÉ

 d
çî

Éê
åã

Éå
í Ü

~ë
 å
çï

 ë
Éí

íÜ
É 
äÉ
îÉ

ä ç
Ñ `

çì
åÅ

áä 
q
~ñ

áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 Ä
ÉÑ
çê
É 
~ 
êÉ
ÑÉ
êÉ
åÇ

ìã
áë
 íê
áÖ
ÖÉ

êÉ
Ç 
~í
 O
B
I í
ÜÉ

êÉ
Ñç
êÉ

íÜ
É 
éê
çé

çë
ÉÇ

 áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 Ü
~ë

åç
ï
 Ä
ÉÉ

å 
êÉ
îá
ëÉ

Ç 
Çç

ï
åK
 få

~Ç
Çá
íáç

åI
 íÜ

É 
d
çî

Éê
åã

Éå
í á
ë

~ä
ëç

 ç
ÑÑÉ

êáå
Ö 
~ 
`
çì

åÅ
áä 
q
~ñ

Ñê
ÉÉ

òÉ
 Ö
ê~
åí
 É
èì

áî
~ä
Éå

í í
ç 
NB

Ñç
ê 
`
çì

åÅ
áäë
 íÜ

~í
 Ç
ç 
åç

í
áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 íÜ

Éá
ê 
`
çì

åÅ
áä 
q
~ñ

 Ñç
ê

OM
NP

LN
QK
 `

~Ä
áå
Éí
 ï
áää
 Ä
É

~ë
âÉ

Ç 
íç
 Å
çå

ëá
ÇÉ

ê 
íÜ
É 
ä~
íÉ
ëí

Äì
ÇÖ

Éí
 é
çë

áíá
çå

 ç
å 
OO

 g
~å

ì~
êó

OM
NP

 ~
åÇ

 ã
~â

É
êÉ
Åç

ã
ã
Éå

Ç~
íáç

åë
 íç

 `
çì

åÅ
áä

çå
 íÜ

É 
éê
çé

çë
ÉÇ

 äÉ
îÉ

ä ç
Ñ

`
çì

åÅ
áä 
q
~ñ

 áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 Ñç

ê
OM

NP
LN
QK

`
iU

 `
äÉ
~å

 Ä
áää
 ç
Ñ Ü

É~
äíÜ

Öá
îÉ

å 
íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
^
åå

ì~
ä

d
çî

Éê
å~

åÅ
É 
~å

Ç 
~ì

Çá
í

êÉ
îá
Éï

ë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

a
Éê
Éâ

 t
Üá
íÉ
ï
~ó

b
áäÉ

Éå
 _
ä~
ã
áêÉ

iç
ï
 áë

 d
çç

Ç
M

M
d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
áë
ëì

Éë
 áÇ

Éå
íáÑ
áÉ
Ç 
~í
 é
çá
åí
 ç
Ñ

êÉ
éç

êí
áå
Ö 
íç
 ^
ìÇ

áí 
`
çã

ã
áíí
ÉÉ

çå
 O
PL
MN

LN
PK

`
iU

 c
ìí
ìê
É 
óÉ

~ê
ë

Ñáå
~å

Åá
~ä
 ë
íê
~í
ÉÖ

ó 
ëÉ

í á
å

äáÖ
Üí
 ç
Ñ Ö

çî
Éê
åã

Éå
í

éä
~å

åÉ
Ç 
Ñáå

~å
Åá
~ä

ÅÜ
~å

ÖÉ
ë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

^
åÇ

êÉ
ï
 `

ä~
êâ
É

^
ÄÄ

çí
í _

êó
åá
åÖ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

N
N

d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ÜÉ

 j
q
c
p
 ì
éÇ

~í
É 
ï
~ë

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 íç
 `

~Ä
áå
Éí
 ç
å

SL
NN

LN
OK

`
iU

 o
çÄ

ìë
í ~

åÇ
 íÉ

ëí
ÉÇ

~ê
ê~
åÖ

Éã
Éå

íë
 ~
êÉ
 áå

éä
~Å

É 
Ñç
ê 
Éã

Éê
ÖÉ

åÅ
ó

éä
~å

åá
åÖ

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

j
~ê
â 
_
~ê
íäÉ

íí
h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

N
N

d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

b
ã
Éê
ÖÉ

åÅ
ó 
~å

Ç 
_
ìë

áå
Éë

ë
`
çå

íáå
ìá
íó
 m
ä~
åë

 ~
êÉ
 ê
ÉÖ

ìä
~ê
äó

êÉ
îá
Éï

ÉÇ
 ~
åÇ

 ì
éÇ

~í
ÉÇ

K
p
Éî

Éê
~ä
 É
ñÉ

êÅ
áë
Éë

 ï
Éê
É 
ÜÉ

äÇ
Çì

êáå
Ö 
OM

NO
K b

ã
Éê
ÖÉ

åÅ
ó 
êç
í~

ã
~á
åí
~á
åÉ

Ç 
Äó

 íÉ
~ã

 ç
Ñ í
ê~
áå
ÉÇ

a
ìí
ó 
få
Åá
ÇÉ

åí
 l

ÑÑá
ÅÉ

êë
 ç
å 
~

OQ
LT
 Ä
~ë

áë
K

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
Q 
çÑ
 N
O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 13



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
ó 
i
É~

Ç
Éê
ëÜ

áé
`
iU

 k
a
o
 Å
çä
äÉ
Åí
áç
å 
~ë

 B
çÑ
 k

a
o
 Ç
ìÉ

j
çå

íÜ
äó

gì
äáÉ

 p
ã
Éí
Üì

êë
í

^
ÄÄ

çí
í _

êó
åá
åÖ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

UU
KV
B

UU
KM
B

^
ã
ÄÉ

ê
k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ÜÉ

 Å
çä
äÉ
Åí
áç
å 
çÑ
 _
ìë

áå
Éë

ë
o
~í
Éë

 áë
 Å
ìê
êÉ
åí
äó
 Ñ~

ääá
åÖ

ëä
áÖ
Üí
äó
 ë
Üç

êí
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

 í~
êÖ
Éí
 ì
é

íç
 íÜ

É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ
 a

ÉÅ
Éã

ÄÉ
êK
 q
ÜÉ

Åì
êê
Éå

í É
Åç

åç
ã
áÅ
 ë
áíì

~í
áç
å 
áë

é~
êí
áÅ
ìä
~ê
äó
 ~
ÑÑÉ

Åí
áå
Ö 
ëç

ã
É

ëã
~ä
ä Ä

ìë
áå
Éë

ëÉ
ë 
ï
Üá
ÅÜ

 áë
Åê
É~

íáå
Ö 
~ 
é~

êí
áÅ
ìä
~ê
äó
 Ç
áÑÑ
áÅ
ìä
í

Åä
áã

~í
É 
áå
 ï
Üá
ÅÜ

 íç
 Å
çä
äÉ
Åí

çì
íë
í~
åÇ

áå
Ö 
ÇÉ

Äí
ëK
  e

çï
Éî

Éê
íÜ
É 
k
k
a
o
 íÉ

~ã
 ~
êÉ
 ï
çê
âá
åÖ

Ü~
êÇ
 ï
áíÜ

 ê
ÉÇ

ìÅ
ÉÇ

 ê
Éë

çì
êÅ
Éë

íç
 É
åë

ìê
É 
~Å

Åç
ìå

íë
 ~
êÉ

~Å
Åì

ê~
íÉ
äó
 ã

~á
åí
~á
åÉ

Ç 
C

êÉ
Åç

îÉ
êÉ
Ç 
áå
 ~
ÅÅ

çê
Ç~

åÅ
É 
ï
áíÜ

äÉ
Öá
ëä
~í
áç
åK

`
iU

 `
çì

åÅ
áä 
q
~ñ

Åç
ääÉ

Åí
áç
å 
~ë

 ~
 B

 `
çì

åÅ
áä

q
~ñ

 a
ìÉ

j
çå

íÜ
äó

gì
äáÉ

 p
ã
Éí
Üì

êë
í

^
ÄÄ

çí
í _

êó
åá
åÖ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

US
KO
B

UR
KV
B

^
ã
ÄÉ

ê
k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ÜÉ

 Å
çä
äÉ
Åí
áç
å 
çÑ
 `

çì
åÅ

áä 
q
~ñ

~í
 íÜ

É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ
 è
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 Ü
~ë

Ñ~
ääÉ

å 
ëä
áÖ
Üí
äó
 ë
Üç

êí
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

í~
êÖ
Éí
 ç
Ñ U

SK
OB

K o
ÉÅ

çî
Éê
ó

éê
çÅ

ÉÇ
ìê
Éë

 C
 íá
ã
Éí
~Ä

äÉ
ë 
~ê
É

Åç
åí
áå
ì~

ääó
 Ä
Éá
åÖ

 ê
Éî

áÉ
ï
ÉÇ

 íç
Éå

ëì
êÉ
 ã

~ñ
áã

ìã
 É
ÑÑÉ

Åí
K p

í~
ÑÑ

ï
áíÜ

áå
 íÜ

É 
ëÜ

~ê
ÉÇ

 ë
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 ~
í

Äç
íÜ
 ë
áíÉ

ë 
~ê
É 
ï
çê
âá
åÖ

íç
ÖÉ

íÜ
Éê
 äç

çâ
áå
Ö 
~í
 ã

çê
É

ÉÑ
ÑáÅ

áÉ
åí
 ï
~ó

ë 
çÑ
 ï
çê
âá
åÖ

I Ä
ìí

íÜ
É 
Åì

êê
Éå

í É
Åç

åç
ã
áÅ
 Å
äáã

~í
É

Ü~
ë 
~å

 áã
é~

Åí
 ç
å 
Åì

ëí
çã

Éê
Dë

~Ä
áäá
íó
 íç

 é
~ó

I ~
åÇ

 Å
çå

íáå
ìÉ

ë 
íç

Ü~
îÉ

 ~
å 
ÉÑ
ÑÉ
Åí
 ç
å 
Åç

ääÉ
Åí
áç
å

ê~
íÉ
ëK

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
R 
çÑ
 N
O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 14



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
ó 
i
É~

Ç
Éê
ëÜ

áé
b
ÑÑá
Åá
Éå

Åó
 ë
~î

áå
Öë

 ~
åÇ

ëÉ
êî
áÅ
É 
áã

éê
çî

Éã
Éå

íë
~Å

Üá
Éî

ÉÇ
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Ü 
àç
áå
í

ï
çê
âá
åÖ

 ~
åÇ

 ë
Ü~

êÉ
Ç

ëÉ
êî
áÅ
Éë

`
iP

 p
~î

áå
Öë

Lb
ÑÑá
Åá
Éå

Åá
Éë

~Å
Üá
Éî

ÉÇ
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Ü 
ëÜ

~ê
ÉÇ

ëÉ
êî
áÅ
ÉL
àç
áå
í ï

çê
âá
åÖ

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

e
É~

íÜ
Éê

^
êã

ëí
êç
åÖ

b
áäÉ

Éå
 _
ä~
ã
áêÉ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

a
áë
Åì

ëë
áç
åë

 ï
áíÜ

 i
~å

Å~
ëÜ

áêÉ
`
çì

åí
ó 
`
çì

åÅ
áäL
l
åÉ

 `
çå

åÉ
Åí

iá
ã
áíÉ

Ç 
El

`
iF
 ~
êç
ìå

Ç
éê
çî

áë
áç
å 
çÑ
 Ñ~

ÅÉ
 íç

 Ñ~
ÅÉ

ëÉ
êî
áÅ
Éë

 ê
Éã

~á
å 
çå

 Ü
çä
Ç

~ï
~á
íáå

Ö 
~î

~á
ä~
Äá
äáí
ó 
çÑ
 íÜ

Éá
ê

êÉ
ëç

ìê
ÅÉ

K  
`
ìê
êÉ
åí
äó
 l

`
i

`
ìë

íç
ã
Éê
 p
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 ^
Çî

áë
çê
ë

Åç
åí
áå
ìÉ

 íç
 ç
ÑÑÉ

ê 
Ñ~
ÅÉ

 íç
 Ñ~

ÅÉ
~Å

ÅÉ
ëë

 íç
 i
~å

Å~
ëÜ

áêÉ
 `

çì
åí
ó

`
çì

åÅ
áä 
ëÉ

êî
áÅ
Éë

 áå
 íÜ

É
i~

åÅ
~ë

Üá
êÉ
 Ç
áë
íê
áÅ
í ç

å 
~ 
äáã

áíÉ
Ç

é~
êí
 íá
ã
É 
Ä~

ëá
ëK

`
iP

 p
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

áã
éê
çî

Éã
Éå

íë
 ~
ÅÜ

áÉ
îÉ

Ç
íÜ
çê
ìÖ

Ü 
ëÜ

~ê
ÉÇ

ëÉ
êî
áÅ
ÉL
àç
áå
í ï

çê
âá
åÖ

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

^
åå

É 
j
~ê
áÉ

e
~ê
êáë

çå
b
áäÉ

Éå
 _
ä~
ã
áêÉ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ï
ç 
_
ìë

áå
Éë

ë 
fã

éê
çî

Éã
Éå

í
éê
çà
ÉÅ

íë
 Ç
ê~
ï
áå
Ö 
íç

Åç
ã
éä
Éí
áç
åI
 É
ñé

ÉÅ
íÉ
Ç 
íç
 Ä
É

~Å
Üá
Éî

ÉÇ
 Ä
ó 
íÜ
É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ
 è
ì~

êí
Éê

QK
  c

ìê
íÜ
Éê
 _
ìë

áå
Éë

ë
fã

éê
çî

Éã
Éå

í ï
çê
â 
åç

ï
 áå

ÇÉ
îÉ

äç
éã

Éå
í

`
iP

 p
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

fã
éê
çî

Éã
Éå

íë
 ~
ÅÜ

áÉ
îÉ

Ç
íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
çå

äáå
É 
ëÉ

êî
áÅ
É

ÇÉ
äáî
Éê
ó 
~å

Ç 
çí
ÜÉ

ê
ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
ë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

f~
å 
g~

Åâ
ëç

å
b
áäÉ

Éå
 _
ä~
ã
áêÉ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

NB
UR

B
d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 Å
ìê
êÉ
åí
äó
 Ç
Éê
áî
ÉÇ

Ñê
çã

 ç
åä
áå
É 
ìë

Éê
 ë
~í
áë
Ñ~
Åí
áç
å

ëì
êî
Éó

 ~
í

ï
ï
ï
Kä~

åÅ
~ë

íÉ
êK
Öç

îK
ìâ

`
iP

 t
çê
â 
ï
áíÜ

 é
~ê
íå
Éê
ë

íç
 áå

Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

Åç
ã
É 
Ñê
çã

Åä
áã

~í
É 
ÅÜ

~å
ÖÉ

 áå
áíá
~í
áî
Éë

~å
Ç 
éê
çà
ÉÅ

íë

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

a
~å

 t
çç

Ç
q
áã

e
~ã

áäí
çå

J`
çñ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ÜÉ

 áå
Åç

ã
É 
ÖÉ

åÉ
ê~
íÉ
Ç

íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
íÜ
É 
c
ÉÉ

ÇJ
áå
 q
~ê
áÑÑ

Ñê
çã

 íÜ
É 
p
çä
~ê
 m
s
 ë
ÅÜ

Éã
Éë

 ì
é

íç
 íÜ

É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ
 n

íê
 P
 áë

>
OQ

IR
TV

KT
RK

`
iP

 få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 äÉ

îÉ
äë
 ç
Ñ

çå
äáå

É 
Éå

Ö~
ÖÉ

ã
Éå

í ï
áíÜ

äç
Å~

ä Å
áíá
òÉ

åë

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

gÉ
å 
j
áää
áÖ
~å

b
áäÉ

Éå
 _
ä~
ã
áêÉ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

NO
P 
éÉ

çé
Éä
 ~
êÉ
 ê
ÉÖ

áë
íÉ
êÉ
Ç 
íç

êÉ
ÅÉ

áî
É 
Åç

åë
ìä
í~
íáç

å 
áå
Ñç

çå
äáå

ÉK
  ^

 Ñì
êí
ÜÉ

ê 
NS

O 
~ê
É

ëá
Öå

ÉÇ
 ì
é 
íç
 ê
ÉÅ

Éá
îÉ

Åç
åë

ìä
í~
íáç

å 
áå
Ñç
I Ä

ìí
 Ü
~î

Éå
Dí

êÉ
Öá
ëí
Éê
ÉÇ

 ï
áíÜ

 ç
ìê
 ì
éÇ

~í
ÉÇ

çå
äáå

É 
ëó
ëí
Éã

K

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
S 
çÑ
 N
O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 15



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
ó 
i
É~

Ç
Éê
ëÜ

áé
iç

Å~
ä Å

çã
ã
ìå

áíá
Éë

 ï
áää
 Ä
É

~Å
íáî

Éä
ó 
ï
çê
âá
åÖ

 ï
áíÜ

é~
êí
åÉ

êë
 íç

 áã
éê
çî

É
ï
ÜÉ

êÉ
 íÜ

Éó
 äá
îÉ

I á
å 
ï
~ó

ë
íÜ
~í
 ã

~í
íÉ
ê 
íç
 íÜ

Éã
K

`
iS

 B
 ç
Ñ Å

çì
åÅ

áää
çê
ë

ìå
ÇÉ

êí
~â

áå
Ö

íê
~á
åá
åÖ

LÇ
Éî

Éä
çé

ã
Éå

í á
å

Åç
ã
ã
ìå

áíó
 äÉ

~Ç
Éê
ëÜ

áé

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

a
ÉÄ

Äá
É 
`
Ü~

ã
ÄÉ

êë
b
áäÉ

Éå
 _
ä~
ã
áêÉ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

^
í í
Üá
ë 
éç

áå
í á
å 
íÜ
É 
óÉ

~ê
 E
Éå

Ç 
çÑ

a
ÉÅ

Éã
ÄÉ

ê 
OM

NO
FI
 O
Q 
çì

í ç
Ñ

íÜ
É 
SM

 `
çì

åÅ
áää
çê
ë 
Ü~

îÉ
~í
íÉ
åÇ

ÉÇ
 ë
çã

É 
íê
~á
åá
åÖ

 ç
ê

Éî
Éå

í ~
êç
ìå

Ç 
`
çã

ã
ìå

áíó
iÉ

~Ç
Éê
ëÜ

áé
 ë
áå
ÅÉ

 j
~ó

 O
MN

OK
q
Üá
ë 
áå
Åä
ìÇ

Éë
 íÜ

É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
ï
Üç

Ü~
îÉ

 í~
âÉ

å 
é~

êí
 áå

 íÜ
É 
h
ÉÉ

é 
fí

o
É~

ä é
êç
àÉ
Åí
K

q
ÜÉ

 î
çä
ìå

í~
êó
I

Åç
ã
ã
ìå

áíó
 ~
åÇ

 Ñ~
áíÜ

ëÉ
Åí
çê
 E
s
`
c
p
F 
Ü~

îÉ
Å~

é~
Åá
íó
 íç

 Ç
Éä
áî
Éê

ëÉ
êî
áÅ
Éë

 Ñç
ê 
íÜ
É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

`
iQ

 s
`
c
p
 é
~ê
íå
Éê
ëÜ

áé
ï
çê
âá
åÖ

 ~
êê
~å

ÖÉ
ã
Éå

íë
~ê
É 
~Ö

êÉ
ÉÇ

 ~
åÇ

 áå
 é
ä~
ÅÉ

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

^
åå

É 
j
~ê
áÉ

e
~ê
êáë

çå
gç

å 
_
~ê
êó

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

^
êê
~å

ÖÉ
ã
Éå

íë
 Ç
Éî

Éä
çé

áå
Ö 
áå

äáå
É 
ï
áíÜ

 ~
åÇ

 íç
 ë
ìé

éç
êí
 íÜ

É
Åç

ìå
Åá
äDë
 s
`
c
p

Åç
ã
ã
áë
ëá
çå

áå
Ö 
éê
çÖ

ê~
ã
ã
É

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
T 
çÑ
 N
O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 16



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

b
Åç

å
ç
ã
áÅ
 d

êç
ï
íÜ

i~
åÅ

~ë
íÉ
ê 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

íDë
êÉ
Åç

Öå
áíá
çå

 ~
ë 
~ 
îá
ëá
íç
ê

ÇÉ
ëí
áå
~í
áç
å 
áë
 É
åÜ

~å
ÅÉ

Ç

b
d
S 
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç

é~
êí
áÅ
áé
~í
áç
å 
áå
 äç

Å~
ä

Éå
íÉ
êí
~á
åã

Éå
í ~

åÇ
Åç

ã
ã
ìå

áíó
 É
îÉ

åí
ë

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

o
áÅ
Ü~

êÇ
e
~ã

ã
çå

Ç
o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

^
Çã

áë
ëá
çå

ë 
~ê
É 
ÖÉ

åÉ
ê~
ääó
 ç
å

Åç
ìê
ëÉ

 íç
 ã

~â
É 
í~
êÖ
Éí

iç
Å~

ä ^
ìí
Üç

êáí
ó 
é~

êí
åÉ

êë
ï
áää
 Ä
É 
ï
çê
âá
åÖ

 íç
ÖÉ

íÜ
Éê

íç
 Ç
Éî

Éä
çé

 é
ä~
åë

 Ñç
ê

ÉÅ
çå

çã
áÅ
 Ö
êç
ï
íÜ
 ~
äáÖ

åÉ
Ç

b
d
N 
k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 ç
ÑÑë

Üç
êÉ

ï
áå
Ç 
êÉ
åÉ

ï
~Ä

äÉ
ë

Äá
çã

~ë
ë 
áå
áíá
~í
áî
Éë

ëì
éé

çê
íÉ
Ç

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

a
~î

áÇ
 i
~ï

ëç
å

g~
åá
ÅÉ

 e
~å

ëç
å

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
çí
Üá
åÖ

 íç
 ê
Éé

çê
í ~

í í
Üá
ë 
ëí
~Ö

ÉK
j
çê
É 
áå
Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å 
ï
áää
 Ä
É

~î
~á
ä~
Ää
É 
ï
ÜÉ

å 
íÜ
É 
~å

åì
~ä

êÉ
éç

êí
 áë

 é
êÉ
é~

êÉ
Ç

íç
 å
~í
áç
å~

ääó
 áã

éç
êí
~å

í
Éå

Éê
Öó

 ~
åÇ

 e
Éó

ëÜ
~ã

Lj
S

íê
~å

ëé
çê
í ä
áå
âë

b
d
N 
^
Åí
áî
áíá
Éë

 ~
Öê
ÉÉ

Ç 
áå

íÜ
É 
m
m
^
 Ñç

ê 
íÜ
É 
k
~í
áç
å~

ä
Öê
áÇ
 ï
áää
 Ä
É 
ÇÉ

äáî
Éê
ÉÇ

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

^
åÇ

êÉ
ï
 a

çÄ
ëç

å
g~

åá
ÅÉ

 e
~å

ëç
å

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

N
N

d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

j
çê
É 
íç
ìê
áë
íë
 Å
çã

áå
Ö 
íç

íÜ
É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í ~
åÇ

 íç
ìê
áë
í

áå
Åç

ã
É 
áë
 ã

~ñ
áã

áë
ÉÇ

b
d
P 
s
áë
áíç

ê 
Éå

èì
áêá
Éë

áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

e
É~

íÜ
Éê

^
êã

ëí
êç
åÖ

o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

s
áë
áíç

ê 
Éå

èì
áêá
Éë

 íÉ
äÉ
éÜ

çå
É

ëí
~í
ë 
Åì

êê
Éå

íäó
 ì
å~

î~
áä~

Ää
É

Ñê
çã

 f`
q
 Ç
ìÉ

 íç
 íÉ

ÅÜ
åá
Å~

ä
áë
ëì

Éë
K  
^
 ë
çä
ìí
áç
å 
áë
 Ä
Éá
åÖ

ï
çê
âÉ

Ç 
çå

K  
m
êç
Öê
Éë

ë
Åç

åí
áå
ìÉ

ë 
çå

 É
ëí
~Ä

äáë
Üá
åÖ

 íÜ
É

Ä~
ëÉ

äáå
É 
Ñç
ê 
~ä
ä Å

Ü~
åå

Éä
ë 
Ec
~Å

É
íç
 Ñ~

ÅÉ
I í
Éä
Éé

Üç
åÉ

I á
åí
Éê
åÉ

íF
K

b
d
P 
s
áë
áíç

ê 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

êë
áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

d
áää
 e

~á
ÖÜ

o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

m
êç
Öê
Éë

ë 
áë
 Ä
Éá
åÖ

 ã
~Ç

É 
íç

áå
íê
çÇ

ìÅ
É 
~ 
åÉ

ï
 ë
óë
íÉ
ã
 ç
Ñ

Åç
ää~

íáå
Ö 
~í
íÉ
åÇ

~å
ÅÉ

 Ñá
Öì

êÉ
ë

Ñç
ê 
íÜ
É 
Çá
ÑÑÉ

êÉ
åí
 Ç
~í
~ 
ëç

ìê
ÅÉ

ë
ï
Üá
ÅÜ

 é
êç
îá
ÇÉ

 ~
å 
áå
Çá
Å~

íç
ê 
çÑ

éÉ
êÑ
çê
ã
~å

ÅÉ
 Ñç

ê 
íÜ
áë
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
K

q
Üá
ë 
áå
Åä
ìÇ

Éë
W t

ÉÄ
ëá
íÉ
 Ç
~í
~I

b
îÉ

åí
ë 
Éî

~ä
ì~

íáç
å 
~å

Ç 
`
áíó

`
çì

åÅ
áä 
êì
å 
îá
ëá
íç
ê 
~í
íê
~Å

íáç
åë

K
^
ë 
íÜ
Éê
É 
~ê
É 
î~

êáç
ìë

 ë
çì

êÅ
Éë

çÑ
 Ç
~í
~ 
ï
É 
~ê
É 
êÉ
îá
Éï

áå
Ö 
~

ã
É~

åë
 ç
Ñ ì

ëá
åÖ

 íÜ
Éë

É
~é

éê
çé

êá~
íÉ
äó
 íç

 é
êç
îá
ÇÉ

 ~
å

çî
Éê
~ä
ä á
åÇ

áÅ
~í
çê
K

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
U 
çÑ
 N
O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 17



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

b
Åç

å
ç
ã
áÅ
 d

êç
ï
íÜ b
d
P 
s
áë
áíç

ê 
p
éÉ

åÇ
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

d
áää
 e

~á
ÖÜ

o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

m
êç
Öê
Éë

ë 
áë
 Ä
Éá
åÖ

 ã
~Ç

É 
íç

áå
íê
çÇ

ìÅ
É 
~ 
åÉ

ï
 ë
óë
íÉ
ã
 ç
Ñ

Åç
ää~

íáå
Ö 
Öê
çë

ë 
áå
Åç

ã
É 
ÑáÖ

ìê
Éë

Ñç
ê 
íÜ
É 
Çá
ÑÑÉ

êÉ
åí
 î
Éå

ìÉ
ë 
ï
Üá
ÅÜ

éê
çî

áÇ
É 
~å

 áå
Çá
Å~

íç
ê 
çÑ

éÉ
êÑ
çê
ã
~å

ÅÉ
 Ñç

ê 
íÜ
áë
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
K

q
Üá
ë 
áå
Åä
ìÇ

Éë
W s

f`
 ~
åÇ

 `
áíó

`
çì

åÅ
áä 
ã
~å

~Ö
ÉÇ

 ~
ííê
~Å

íáç
åë

K
fí 
ï
áää
 ~
äë
ç 
áå
Åä
ìÇ

É 
Éë

íáã
~í
ÉÇ

Éñ
éÉ

åÇ
áíì

êÉ
 Ñá
Öì

êÉ
ë 
Ñê
çã

 Å
áíó

Åç
ìå

Åá
ä ê
ìå

 ÑÉ
ëí
áî
~ä
ë 
~å

Ç
Éî

Éå
íK 
^
ë 
íÜ
Éê
É 
~ê
É 
î~

êáç
ìë

ëç
ìê
ÅÉ

ë 
çÑ
 Ç
~í
~ 
ï
É 
~ê
É

êÉ
îá
Éï

áå
Ö 
~ 
ã
É~

åë
 ç
Ñ ì

ëá
åÖ

íÜ
Éë

É 
~é

éê
çé

êá~
íÉ
äó
 íç

 é
êç
îá
ÇÉ

~å
 ç
îÉ

ê~
ää 
áå
Çá
Å~

íç
êK

q
ÜÉ

 ~
ííê
~Å

íáî
Éå

Éë
ë 
çÑ
 íÜ

É
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í ~
ë 
~ 
éä
~Å

É 
íç
 î
áë
áí

áë
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ

b
d
Q 
e
Éê
áí~

ÖÉ
 ^
ëë

Éí
ë

áã
éê
çî

ÉÇ
n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

^
åÇ

êÉ
ï

a
êì
ã
ã
çå

Ç
g~

åá
ÅÉ

 e
~å

ëç
å

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

N
ON

d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
e
b
j
b
W j

~å
~Ö

áå
Ö

êÉ
ëç

ìê
ÅÉ

ë 
ï
áë
Éä
ó

b
d
O 
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

 íÜ
É

åì
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

~é
éê
Éå

íáÅ
Éë

Üá
éë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

p
íì
~ê
í e

~ã
éë

çå
b
áäÉ

Éå
 _
ä~
ã
áêÉ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

P
T

d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

t
É 
Ü~

îÉ
 É
ñÅ
ÉÉ

ÇÉ
Ç 
çì

ê 
í~
êÖ
Éí

çÑ
 R
 Ñç

ê 
íÜ
É 
óÉ

~ê
 ~
åÇ

 ~
êÉ
 áå

 íÜ
É

éê
çÅ

Éë
ë 
çÑ
 ë
í~
êí
áå
Ö 
íÜ
É

êÉ
Åê
ìá
íã

Éå
í é

êç
ÅÉ

ëë
 Ñç

ê 
~å

 U
íÜ

~é
éê
Éå

íáÅ
Éë

Üá
é

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
V 
çÑ
 N
O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 18



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

e
É~

äí
Ü
 C

 t
Éä
äÄ
Éá
å
Ö

b
åÜ

~å
ÅÉ

Ç 
èì

~ä
áíó
 ç
Ñ ä
áÑÉ

çÑ
 äç

Å~
ä ê
Éë

áÇ
Éå

íë
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Ü
~Å

ÅÉ
ëë

 íç
 Ö
çç

Ç 
èì

~ä
áíó

Üç
ìë

áå
Ö

e
t
N 
m
Éê
ÅÉ

åí
~Ö

É 
çÑ

Åç
ìå

Åá
ä Ü

çã
Éë

 íÜ
~í
 Ñ~

áä 
íç

ã
ÉÉ

í í
ÜÉ

 a
ÉÅ

Éå
í e

çã
Éë

p
í~
åÇ

~ê
Ç

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

`
Üê
áë
 e

~å
å~

h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ÜÉ

 O
MN

OL
OM

NP
  `

~é
áí~

ä
éê
çÖ

ê~
ã
ã
É 
áå
Åä
ìÇ

Éë
âá
íÅ
ÜÉ

åL
Ä~

íÜ
êç
çã

êÉ
Ñì
êÄ
áë
Üã

Éå
íX 
Éä
ÉÅ

íê
áÅ
~ä

êÉ
ï
áêá
åÖ

X Ä
çá
äÉ
ê 
êÉ
éä
~Å

Éã
Éå

íë
X

~ë
ÄÉ

ëí
çë

 ê
Éã

çî
~ä
X Ñ
áêÉ

éê
ÉÅ

~ì
íáç

å 
ï
çê
âë

X ~
åÇ

Çá
ë~

Ää
ÉÇ

 ~
Ç~

éí
~í
áç
åë

X É
ñí
Éê
å~

ä
êÉ
Ñì
êÄ
áë
Üã

Éå
íX 
êÉ
Jê
çç

Ñáå
ÖX

Éå
îá
êç
åã

Éå
í~
ä f
ã
éê
çî

Éã
Éå

íë
K

_
ìÇ

ÖÉ
í >

PK
Uã

X p
éÉ

åÇ
 ]

UL
NL
OM

NP
 >
NK
Sã

K m
êç
Öê
~ã

ã
É

çå
 íê
~Å

âK
e
t
N 
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

 íÜ
É

åì
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 ~
ÑÑç

êÇ
~Ä

äÉ
Üç

ã
Éë

 Ç
Éä
áî
Éê
ÉÇ

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

h
~í
Ü 
p
áå
Åä
~á
ê

g~
åá
ÅÉ

 e
~å

ëç
å

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

Da
~í
~L
áå
Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å 
åç

í ó
Éí

~î
~á
ä~
Ää
ÉD

e
t
N 
k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 å
Éï

Üç
ã
Éë

 Å
çã

éä
Éí
ÉÇ

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

j
~ì

êáÅ
É 
_
êç
éÜ

ó
g~

åá
ÅÉ

 e
~å

ëç
å

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

Da
~í
~L
áå
Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å 
åç

í ó
Éí

~î
~á
ä~
Ää
ÉD

e
t
N 
k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ

áã
éê
çî

ÉÇ
 Ü
çã

Éë
n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

j
áâ
É 
a
~Ö

ÖÉ
ê

h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

NI
OT

R
NI
QV

M
d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

NS
KU
B
 ~
ÜÉ

~Ç
 ç
Ñ í
~ê
ÖÉ

í ~
í í
ÜÉ

Éå
Ç 
çÑ
 n

PK
e
É~

äíÜ
 ~
åÇ

 ï
Éä
äÄ
Éá
åÖ

áã
éê
çî

ÉÇ
 ~
åÇ

 ã
çê
í~
äáí
ó

ê~
íÉ
ë 
êÉ
Çì

ÅÉ
Ç 
Ñç
ê

e
t
O 
^
áê 
n
ì~

äáí
ó 
p
íê
~í
ÉÖ

ó
áå
 é
ä~
ÅÉ

 ~
åÇ

 ~
Öê
ÉÉ

Ç 
Äó

j
~ê
ÅÜ

 O
MN

P

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

k
áÅ
â 
e
çï

~ê
Ç

q
áã

e
~ã

áäí
çå

J`
çñ

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

p
íê
~í
ÉÖ

ó 
Çì

É 
íç
 Ä
É 
ï
êáí
íÉ
å 
Äó

j
~ê
ÅÜ

 O
MN

P

îì
äå
Éê
~Ä

äÉ
 é
Éç

éä
É 
áå
 íÜ

É
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í
e
t
O 
o
ÉÇ

ìÅ
íáç

å 
áå

Üç
ã
Éä
Éë

ë 
éÉ

çé
äÉ
 áå

 íÜ
É

Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

j
áâ
É 
a
~Ö

ÖÉ
ê

h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

iç
ï
 áë

 d
çç

Ç
VM

QS
d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

QU
KU
B
 ~
ÜÉ

~Ç
 ç
Ñ í
~ê
ÖÉ

í ~
í í
ÜÉ

Éå
Ç 
çÑ
 n

PK

e
t
O 
o
ÉÇ

ìÅ
íáç

å 
áå

åì
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 é
Éç

éä
É

ëä
ÉÉ

éá
åÖ

 ê
çì

ÖÜ
 áå

 íÜ
É

Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

j
áâ
É 
a
~Ö

ÖÉ
ê

h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

c
çì

ê 
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
ëä
ÉÉ

éÉ
êë
 ï
Éê
É

êÉ
Åç

êÇ
ÉÇ

 ~
í í
ÜÉ

 ç
ÑÑá
Åá
~ä
 ê
çì

ÖÜ
ëä
ÉÉ

éÉ
êë
 Å
çì

åí
 ì
åÇ

Éê
í~
âÉ

å 
áå

k
çî

Éã
ÄÉ

ê 
OM

NO
K  
få

a
ÉÅ

Éã
ÄÉ

ê 
OM

NO
I í
ÜÉ

 k
~í
áç
å~

ä
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
ëä
ÉÉ

éÉ
êë
 ê
Éé

çê
íáå

Ö 
äáå

ÉI
p
íê
ÉÉ

í i
áå
âI
 ï
Éå

í ä
áî
É 
éê
çî

áÇ
áå
Ö

~å
 ~
ää 
óÉ

~ê
 ê
çì

åÇ
 ë
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 Ñç
ê

íÜ
É 
êÉ
éç

êí
áå
Ö 
çÑ
 ê
çì

ÖÜ
ëä
ÉÉ

éÉ
êë
 Ä
ó 
ã
Éã

ÄÉ
êë
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

éì
Ää
áÅ
K q

ï
ç 
`
çì

åÅ
áä 
çÑ
ÑáÅ

Éê
ë

îá
ëá
í ê
Éé

çê
íÉ
Ç 
äç
Å~

íáç
å 
íç

~ë
ëÉ

ëë
 íÜ

É 
ëá
íì
~í
áç
å 
~å

Ç 
çÑ
ÑÉ
ê

ëì
éé

çê
í Ç

Éé
Éå

Ç~
åí
 ç
å 
íÜ
É

Åä
áÉ
åí
ë 
åÉ

ÉÇ
ëK

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
NM

 ç
Ñ N

O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 19



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

e
É~

äí
Ü
 C

 t
Éä
äÄ
Éá
å
Ö

e
t
O 
k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ

îì
äå
Éê
~Ä

äÉ
 áå

Çá
îá
Çì

~ä
ë

ÄÉ
åÉ

Ñáí
íáå

Ö 
Ñê
çã

 t
~ê
ã

e
çã

Éë
 få

áíá
~í
áî
Éë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

a
~å

 t
çç

Ç
h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

PM
UM

M
d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

p
áå
ÅÉ

 íÜ
É 
n
íê
 O
 ê
Éé

çê
íI 
íÜ
É 
e
f^

~å
Ç 
m
êáî

~í
É 
p
ÉÅ

íç
ê 
e
çì

ëá
åÖ

Ü~
îÉ

 ë
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

Ñì
ääó
 ë
ÉÅ

ìê
ÉÇ

~Ç
Çá
íáç

å~
ä Ñ
ìå

Çá
åÖ

 Ñê
çã

 ~
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 ë
çì

êÅ
Éë

 áå
Åä
ìÇ

áå
Ö

íÜ
É 
a
Éé

~ê
íã

Éå
í ç

Ñ e
É~

äíÜ
I í
ÜÉ

m
êáã

~ê
ó 
`
~ê
É 
q
êì
ëí
I ~

åÇ
 íÜ

É
Åç

ìå
Åá
ä?ë
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éï

~ê
Ç

d
ê~
åí
 Ñç

ê 
ìë

É 
áå
 íÜ

É 
OM

NO
LN
P

Ñáå
~å

Åá
~ä
 ó
É~

êK
 q
Üá
ë 
Ü~

ë
Éå

~Ä
äÉ
Ç 
~ë

ëá
ëí
~å

ÅÉ
 íç

 Ä
É

éê
çî

áÇ
ÉÇ

 íç
 ~
å 
áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç

åì
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 Å
äáÉ

åí
ë 
íÜ
~å

çê
áÖ
áå
~ä
äó
 é
êç
àÉ
Åí
ÉÇ

 Ñç
ê 
íÜ
áë

éÉ
êáç

Ç
q
ÜÉ

 Ü
É~

äíÜ
 ~
åÇ

 ï
Éä
äÄ
Éá
åÖ

çÑ
 äç

Å~
ä ê
Éë

áÇ
Éå

íë
 ç
Ñ ~

ää
~Ö

Éë
 áë

 áã
éê
çî

ÉÇ
 Ä
ó

é~
êí
áÅ
áé
~í
áå
Ö 
áå
 ë
éç

êí
ë 
~å

Ç

e
t
P 
^
 Ü
É~

äíÜ
 ~
åÇ

ï
Éä
äÄ
Éá
åÖ

 ë
íê
~í
ÉÖ

ó 
Ñç
ê 
íÜ
É

Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í ï
áää
 Ä
É 
áå
 é
ä~
ÅÉ

~å
Ç 
~Ö

êÉ
ÉÇ

 Ä
ó 
gì

åÉ
 O
MN

P

e
~ä
Ñó
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

p
ìò

~å
åÉ

 i
çÇ

ÖÉ
h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

äÉ
áë
ìê
É 
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

e
t
P 
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

 í~
âÉ

 ì
é

çÑ
 äÉ

áë
ìê
É 
ëÉ

êî
áÅ
Éë

v
É~

êäó
 E
íç
 Ä
É

êÉ
éç

êí
ÉÇ

 n
QF

o
áÅ
Ü~

êÇ
e
~ã

ã
çå

Ç
o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
k
L^

k
L^

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
~â

É 
ìé

 áå
 i
Éá
ëì

êÉ
 p
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 Ä
ó

íÜ
É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ
 N
OL
NP

 áë
 äá
âÉ

äó
 íç

~Å
Üá
Éî

É 
íÜ
É 
ë~

ã
É 
äÉ
îÉ

ä ~
ë 
éÉ

ê
íÜ
É 
éê
Éî

áç
ìë

 ó
É~

êK
e
t
P 
k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ

êÉ
ëá
ÇÉ

åí
ë 
~å

Ç 
îá
ëá
íç
êë

é~
êí
áÅ
áé
~í
áå
Ö 
áå
 ë
éç

êí
ë 
~å

Ç
äÉ
áë
ìê
É 
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

o
áÅ
Ü~

êÇ
e
~ã

ã
çå

Ç
o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

NO
TI
OT

U
NU

OI
SM

S
d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
NN

 ç
Ñ N

O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 20



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

O

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

l
ï
åÉ

ê
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

q
êÉ
åÇ

ë

m
Éê
áç
Ç

q
êÉ
åÇ

m
êÉ
î 
v
É~

ê
b
åÇ

q
êÉ
åÇ

v
É~

ê 
çå

v
É~

ê
q
êÉ
åÇ

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

e
É~

äí
Ü
 C

 t
Éä
äÄ
Éá
å
Ö

t
Éä
Ñ~
êÉ
 ê
ÉÑ
çê
ã
ë

ã
~å

~Ö
ÉÇ

 ï
Éä
ä ë

ç 
íç
 ~
îç

áÇ
~å

ó 
ìå

åÉ
ÅÉ

ëë
~ê
ó 
áã

é~
Åí

çå
 äç

Å~
ä Å

çã
ã
ìå

áíá
Éë

e
t
Q 
o
É~

Çá
åÉ

ëë
 Ñç

ê
ÅÜ

~å
ÖÉ

ë 
áå
 ï
Éä
Ñ~
êÉ

êÉ
Ñç
êã

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

^
Çê
á~
å 
o
çÄ

áå
ëç

å
^
ÄÄ

çí
í _

êó
åá
åÖ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

N
N

d
êÉ
Éå

k
ç 
a
~í
~

k
ç 
a
~í
~

^
ää 
ëí
~Ñ
Ñ ~

åÇ
 ã

~å
~Ö

Éê
ë 
~ê
É

âÉ
Éé

áå
Ö 
ìé

 íç
 Ç
~í
É 
ï
áíÜ

Åç
ã
ã
ìå

Å~
íáç

åë
 Ñê
çã

 íÜ
É

a
t
m
 ~
åÇ

 `
çã

ã
ìå

áíá
Éë

 ~
åÇ

iç
Å~

ä d
çî

Éê
åã

Éå
íK

o
ç~

Çë
Üç

ï
ë 
Ü~

îÉ
 Ä
ÉÉ

å
~í
íÉ
åÇ

ÉÇ
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Üç
ìí
 íÜ

É 
`
áíó

íç
 áå

Ñç
êã

 é
Éç

éä
É 
çÑ
 ë
çã

É 
çÑ

íÜ
É 
êÉ
Ñç
êã

ë 
~å

Ç 
Üç

ï
 íÜ

Éó
 ï
áää

ÄÉ
 É
ÑÑÉ

Åí
ÉÇ

K
m
ä~
åë

 Ü
~î

É 
ÄÉ

Éå
 ã

~Ç
É 
íç

~Ç
îÉ

êí
áë
É 
~ä
ä å

Éï
 ê
ÉÑ
çê
ã
ëK

q
ê~
áå
áå
Ö 
ï
áää
 Ä
É 
ÇÉ

äáî
Éê
ÉÇ

 íç
 ~
ää

o
Éî

Éå
ìÉ

ë 
~å

Ç 
`
çå

í~
Åí
 `

Éå
íê
É

ëí
~Ñ
ÑI 
~å

Ç 
Åç

êê
Éë

éç
åÇ

Éå
ÅÉ

êÉ
îá
Éï

ÉÇ
 íç

 É
åë

ìê
É 
~ä
ä

åÉ
ÅÉ

ëë
~ê
ó 
áå
Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å 
áë

ÇÉ
äáî
Éê
ÉÇ

 áå
 ~
 Å
äÉ
~ê
 ~
åÇ

~é
éê
çé

êá~
íÉ
 ã

~å
åÉ

ê 
íç
 íÜ

çë
É

éç
íÉ
åí
á~
ääó
 ~
ÑÑÉ

Åí
ÉÇ

 Ä
ó 
íÜ
É

ÅÜ
~å

ÖÉ
ëK
 q
Üá
ë 
áå
Åä
ìÇ

Éë
ÅÜ

~å
ÖÉ

ë 
íç
 íÜ

É 
ï
ÉÄ

ëá
íÉ
 ï
Üá
ÅÜ

~ê
É 
~ä
êÉ
~Ç

ó 
ÄÉ

áå
Ö 
ã
~Ç

É 
çå

 ~
å

çå
Öç

áå
Ö 
Ä~

ëá
ëK

q
ìÉ

 c
ÉÄ

 N
O 
NR

WR
RW
PS

 O
MN

P
m
~Ö

É 
NO

 ç
Ñ N

O

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

Page 21



���������
	
�	�	
��

������������������������� ���������������

������������� ���! �������"�#��$�����%

Frequency
Active

No Yes

Grey

Current

Red

Current

Amber

Current

Green

Current

HALFYEARLY ! ("##%) ! (!%) ! (!%) ! (!%)

MONTHLY ! (!%) ! (!%) " (#!!%) ! (!%)

QUARTERLY "$ ! (!%) ! (!%) # ($%) #% (&'%)

YEARLY # !% ("##%) ! (!%) ! (#%) # (#%)

"& !$ ('#%())))))!)*!%))))))))))))' (7%)))))))))#% (''%)

&�������������"�'� ��

��%�����������������()�

��������������	
���������

!

!%

(! ((#

(#

(#

Appendix BPage 22



           Prepared by Financial Services               1

Corporate Financial Monitoring 
December 2012      Quarter 3

Report of Financial Services Manager 

HEADLINE INFORMATION 

REVENUE

Current
(Underspend) / 
+ Overspend 

£

Projected
(Underspend) 
/ + Overspend 

£

Future Years 
Projection

(Underspend) 
/ + Overspend

£

General Fund (136) (208) +27 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (6) (10) -- 

Appendix CPage 23



           Prepared by Financial Services               2

CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING 

December 2012 | Quarter 3 

1. INTRODUCTION 

This monitoring report of expenditure and income for 2012/13 sets out an indicative corporate picture of 
the Council’s financial performance relating to the period ending 31 December 2012.

The report summarises the variances reported through Services quarterly PRT meetings, and also 
identifies any omissions, updates and/or actions required.  In addition there are specific sections for 
salary monitoring, capital expenditure and financing, Housing Revenue Account (HRA), revenue 
collection performance and Insurance and Risk Management.   

It should be noted that this quarter’s monitoring is based on the Revised Budget. 

2. GENERAL FUND REVENUE MONITORING 

2.1 General Fund Summary Position 

The current overall General Fund summary position shows that at the end of December there is a net 
underspend of £136K against the budget.  This is currently forecast to increase to £208K by the end of 
the year.

VARIANCES Current
£000’s

Current
Year

Projection
£000’s

Future
Years

Projection
£000’s

Major Variances (see section 2.2) (88) (78) +27

Salaries (see sections 2.3 & 2.4) (48) (130) --

Sub Total (136) (208) +27

ESTIMATED OUTTURN / IMPACT ON 
FUTURE YEARS -- -- +27

One of the key financial indicators is to keep any under or overspends within 2% of the overall net 
controllable revenue budget, and the following table shows that at the end of December this has been 
achieved.  That said, actions could be taken to improve the Council’s position still further. 

 £000’s 
Net Controllable Budget 24,278 
2% Target +/()  486 

Provisional Controllable Net Underspend (11) 
Percentage of Net Controllable Budget 0.05% 

As set out in the Medium Term Financial Strategy, Cabinet has no authority to increase net spending 
above the net revenue budget.  Whilst the overall position may not be projected to breach this position, 
this does not remove the need to consider specifically whether any actions can or should be taken to 
address particular areas of overspending outlined in this report. 

Page 24



           Prepared by Financial Services               3

2.2 Major Budget Variances 

Appendix A details the major true variances identified to date that have been included within individual 
Services’ PRT reports.  The variances reported are either +/- £5K in value and cover premises, 
transport, supplies and services and general income.  A summary is provided in the following table. 

SUMMARY BY SERVICE Current 
£000’s

Current Year 
Projection

£000’s

Future Years 
Projection

£000’s
         REPORTED VARIANCES : ( ) Favourable / + Adverse 
         Environmental Services (84) (27) --
         Health & Housing (24) (24) --
         Regeneration & Planning -- (27) +27
         Resources +20 -- --

(88) (78) +27

Variances not reported to PRT meetings : None -- -- --

 TOTAL VARIANCES (88) (78) +27

The following table provides an analysis of these variances and Appendix A shows how each variance 
has been initially categorised. 

FACTORS INFLUENCING VARIANCES 
Variances

to Date 
£000’s

Current 
Year

Projection
£000’s

Future 
Years

Projection
 £000’s 

Unforeseeable windfalls or costs (25) (30) 0 

Demand led variances (10) (20) +7 

Efficiency savings 0 0 0 

Other service driven variances (incl delays) (38) +7 0 

Budget setting issues / errors (24) (24) 0 

Other variances +9 (11) +20 

TOTAL (88) (78) +27 

In terms of future years, the above analysis does not include any projection as yet in respect of on-going 
salary savings as these will be picked up as part of the current budget review process. 

2.3 General Fund Salary Monitoring  

Salary monitoring has been reported separately as there are a number of small variances that fall below 
the threshold for major items, however their aggregate effect is fairly significant. 

The main savings against the revised budget are in Environmental Services (£27K), Health and Housing 
(£13K) and Community Engagement (£12K).  The overall saving of £52K is projected to rise to £130K 
by the end of the year. 

Page 25



           Prepared by Financial Services               4

3 GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

3.1 Capital Expenditure & Financing

The capital programme has now been updated following a full review as part of the budget process.  A 
summary of the latest position is shown below, and there are no variances to report against the revised 
budget position. 

Scheme

2012/13 
Budget 
£000’s

Spend & 
Commitments 

£000’s

Budget 
Remaining

£000’s
Salt Ayre Sports Centre 89 89 0
Warm Homes Scheme 5 5 0
Williamson Park Improvements 206 3 203
Allotment Improvements 61 57 4
Playground Improvements / Facilities 119 118 1
Invest to Save Solar Panels 20 18 2
Mainway Recycling Bins 4 3 1
Purchase of Vehicles 1,365 1,342 23
Disabled Facilities Grants 802 515 287
YMCA Places of Change 52 33 19
Sea & River Defences 158 157 1
Bold Street Renovation Scheme 262 180 82
Ffrances Passage 7 3 4
Greyhound Bridge Rd Affordable Hsg 250 250 0
Luneside East 78 74 4
Morecambe THI2 A View for Eric 17 0 17
Storey Inst Centre for Industries 13 0 13
West End Temp Car Park 19 1 18
Corporate Property Works 676 216 460
ICT Systems, Infrastructure & Equip 327 213 114
Lancaster Market 1,168 1,168 0

TOTAL 5,698 4,445 1,253

4 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) MONITORING 

4.1 HRA Revenue Position  

At the end of December the position for the Housing Revenue Account shows an underspend of £6K
against the profiled budget, which is currently projected to rise to £10K by the end of the year.   The 
main variance relates to reduced spend on printing and stationery.  

4.2 Council Housing Rent Collection 

At the end of December rental income was slightly lower than estimated but is forecasted to remain on 
budget.  

Total Estimate for Year £13,448,900 

Profiled Budget £10,088,555 

Actual to Date £10,087,552 

Difference (£1,003)

Page 26



           Prepared by Financial Services               5

4.3 Council Housing Capital Programme

The council housing capital programme has also been updated as part of the budget process and the 
latest position is set out below.   

Current
Approved 

Programme 
£000's 

Spend & 
Commitments

to Date 
£000's 

Budget 
Remaining   

£000’s 

Bathroom Kitchen Refurbishment 919 422 497 
External Refurbishment 660 459 201 
Re-roofing / Window Renewals  422 395 27 
Environmental / Crime Prevention Works  398 266 132 
Energy Efficiency Works 450 303 147 
Rewiring  290 50 240 
Adaptations 300 166 134 
Fire Precaution Works 184 8 176 
Invest to Save - PV Solar Panels 147 0 147 
Total Mobile 30 23 7 
Choice Based Lettings 0 1 (1) 
Lift Replacement 52 0 52 
Sceptic Tanks 40 20 20 

 TOTAL 3,892 2,113 1,779

5 REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE 

5.1 Council Tax & Business Rates 

In year collection performance for Council Tax is very slightly down and NNDR is also slightly down on 
the same period last year. 

5.2 Collection Fund Monitoring 

This section sets out the latest position on the Collection Fund, in particular in relation to Council Tax.  
Whilst the above section looks at collection performance, this section shows the current surplus or 
deficit on the Fund.  It basically compares the amounts collectable with the Precepts levied by the 
relevant authorities after allowing for refunds, bad debt provisions, income collected and Council Tax 
benefits.  The monitoring shows that as at the end of December the Fund was in surplus by £54K, but it 
should be noted that the surplus can fluctuate significantly month by month.  Any surplus or deficit is 
shared between the relevant precepting bodies and the City Council’s element equates to 13% and 
would therefore be £7K.   

5.3 Sundry Debts 

This section sets out the latest position on the level of outstanding sundry debts (excluding Council 
Housing).  At the end of December the total debt outstanding was just under £2.521M, which is £227K 
less than the previous quarter.     

Percentage Collected 2011/12
%

2012/13 
%

2012/13 
Target 

%

2012/13 
Actual 

%

Status

All Years   In Year  

Council Tax  79.91 79.25  97.2 85.9 Slightly short 
of target 

Business Rates 88.39 87.85  98.7 88.0 Slightly short 
of target 

Page 27



           Prepared by Financial Services               6

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

0-2
8 d

ay
s

29
-58

da
ys

59
-90

 da
ys

91
-18

2 d
ays

18
3-3

63
 da

ys

36
4 +

 da
ys

Analysis of Debt Outstanding

Sep-12

Dec-12

£
00

0

£0

£250,000

£500,000

£750,000

£1,000,000

£1,250,000

£1,500,000

Governance Community
Engagement

Regeneration &
Planning

Health & Housing Property Services Enviromental
Services

Housing Benefit

365+ Days

184-364 Days

92-183 Days

60-91 Days

28-59 Days

< 28 Days

6 PROVISIONS AND RESERVES

This section provides and update on key provisions and reserves.   

6.1 Insurance Provision 

The current balance on the insurance provision is £435K, after making net payments of £130K in 
settlement of claims made.  

At present, the Council’s insurers estimate that the value of claims outstanding is £461K, which relates 
to a total of 230 claims made over a 5 year period. This estimate assumes that all these claims will be 
settled at the maximum reserve limit; however, statistics show that, on average, only 59% of the total 
reserve will be paid. The estimated cost of claims outstanding could therefore reasonably be valued at 
around £272K.  In addition, at the end of the last financial year the council was notified that it was liable 
for old claims relating to the MMI scheme of arrangement for which an estimated liability of £155K was 
provided for in the provision.  Therefore, the total value of estimated liabilities is £427K which is still £8K 
less than the current provision.  The provision will formally be assessed as part of the closedown 
process. 

It is highly unlikely that all these outstanding claims will fall due for payment in the same financial year, 
but the uncertain nature of insurance claims payments means that accurate predictions are difficult.  

 Sept 12 Dec 12 

 £000’s £000’s 

0-28 days 897 722

29-58 days 163 125

59-90 days 124 87

91-182 days 380 286

183-363 days 363 465

364+ days 821 836

2,748 2,521
Previous Year 2,603 2,124

Page 28



           Prepared by Financial Services               7

Nonetheless, the overriding principle is that the Council must make reasonable provision for all its 
known liabilities.

6.2 Bad Debt Provision 

The Bad Debt provision is formally reviewed half yearly at revised estimate time and closedown.  In 
addition, quarterly updates are now provided as part of the Corporate Monitoring process. 

The level of the provision has been assessed based on assumed levels of write-off as a proportion of 
debt outstanding.  Based on the figures shown in section 5.3 the level of provision would be as follows: 

Period Debt 
£000’s

% Cover 
Required 

Value
£000’s

Up to 1 Month 722 1% 7 

1 Month to 3 Months 212 5% 11 

3 Months to 365 Days 751 10% 75 

Over 365 Days  836 50% 418 

TOTAL 2,521  511 

The current balance on the General Fund Bad Debt provision is £541K which is £30K above the 
requirement indicated, but that is after allowing for this year’s contribution of £100K. The position has 
been reviewed as part of the budget process and no adjustments were made, however it will be 
reviewed again as part of the closedown process.  Given that the majority of sundry debts relate to 
housing benefit overpayments, the planned welfare reforms could well have major bearing in future. 

7 RISK MANAGEMENT

As part of the business planning process, key business risks need to be considered by Service Heads 
and any significant ongoing or emerging risks should be reported on an exceptions basis through 
quarterly Performance Review Team reports, together with any actions needed to manage the situation.  

The key financial and other risks have been incorporated into the budget reports presented to Cabinet 
as part of the 2013/14 budget process. 

Page 29



V
ar

ia
n

ce
 t

o
 

D
at

e 
£

C
u

rr
en

t 
Y

ea
r 

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

   
£

F
u

tu
re

 Y
ea

rs
 

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

   
£

 1
. U

nf
or

es
ee

ab
le

 w
in

df
al

ls
 o

r 
co

st
s

(2
5,

00
0)

(3
0,

00
0)

+0
 2

. D
em

an
d 

le
d 

va
ria

nc
es

(1
0,

00
0)

(1
9,

60
0)

+7
,6

00
 3

. E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 s

av
in

gs
+0

+0
+0

 4
. O

th
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
riv

en
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

 (
in

cl
 d

el
ay

s)
(3

8,
40

0)
+6

,6
00

+0
 5

. B
ud

ge
t s

et
tin

g 
is

su
es

/e
rr

or
s

(2
3,

50
0)

(2
3,

50
0)

+0
 6

. O
th

er
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

+9
,3

00
(1

1,
50

0)
+2

0,
00

0
T

O
T

A
L

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

  
(8

7,
60

0)
(7

8,
00

0)
+2

7,
60

0

S
er

vi
ce

V
ar

ia
n

ce
T

yp
e

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 t
o

 
D

at
e

C
u

rr
en

t 
Y

ea
r 

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

F
u

tu
re

 Y
ea

rs
 

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 &
 A

ct
io

n
 b

ei
n

g
 t

ak
en

£
£

£

1
V

eh
ic

le
s 

- 
F

ue
l

(2
5,

00
0)

(3
0,

00
0)

?
G

ov
er

nm
en

t d
el

ay
ed

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 3
%

 fu
el

 d
ut

y 
ris

e 
fr

om
 A

ug
us

t t
o 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

ha
s 

no
w

 b
ee

n 
ca

nc
el

le
d.

 S
av

in
gs

 a
ls

o 
du

e 
to

 p
ric

e 
be

in
g 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 p

re
di

ct
ed

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 y

ea
r

4
H

ig
hw

ay
s

(4
5,

00
0)

?
?

N
ew

 c
on

tr
ac

t e
nt

er
ed

 in
to

 in
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

2 
so

 s
til

l i
n 

its
 in

fa
nc

y.
 P

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ut

tu
rn

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 c

ur
re

nt
 v

ar
ia

nc
e

6
O

ff 
S

tr
ee

t C
ar

 P
ar

ks
 -

 P
re

m
is

es
 C

os
ts

(1
0,

70
0)

(1
1,

50
0)

+0
E

le
ct

ric
ity

 s
av

in
gs

 d
ue

 to
 e

ne
rg

y 
sa

vi
ng

 li
gh

ts
 in

st
al

le
d 

on
 F

es
tiv

al
 M

ar
ke

t C
ar

 P
ar

k.
 A

ls
o 

de
la

ys
 in

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 w

or
ks

 e
g 

as
ph

al
tin

g 
at

 P
ar

ks
af

e.

2
O

ff 
S

tr
ee

t C
ar

 P
ar

ks
 -

 In
co

m
e

(1
4,

60
0)

(2
0,

00
0)

+0
D

ay
tim

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 in

 p
os

iti
ve

 p
os

iti
on

 o
ffs

et
 b

y 
sl

ig
ht

 d
ow

nt
ur

n 
in

 e
ve

ni
ng

 u
sa

ge
.  

F
in

al
 

qu
ar

te
r 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
se

as
on

al
 a

dv
er

se
 w

ea
th

er
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

lo
w

er
 u

sa
ge

 h
ow

ev
er

 
th

is
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

fa
ct

or
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
.

4
La

nc
as

te
r 

M
ar

ke
t D

ec
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

+6
,6

00
+6

,6
00

+0
D

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
pr

ed
ic

t a
t t

im
e 

of
 b

ud
ge

t s
et

tin
g,

 la
rg

el
y 

du
e 

to
 e

le
ct

ric
al

 w
or

ks
 r

eq
ui

re
d

6
La

nc
as

te
r 

M
ar

ke
t -

 G
as

+0
+2

0,
00

0
+0

F
au

lty
 g

as
 r

ea
di

ng
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 b
ac

kl
og

 o
f u

np
ai

d 
ga

s 
us

ag
e 

fo
r 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
18

 m
on

th
s.

  P
ro

pe
rt

y 
G

ro
up

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

cu
rr

en
t u

sa
ge

2
N

ur
se

rie
s 

In
co

m
e

+4
,6

00
+8

,0
00

+0
F

ew
er

 s
al

es
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 fa
ilu

re
 to

 m
ee

t i
nc

om
e 

ta
rg

et
.  

C
on

tr
ib

ut
or

y 
fa

ct
or

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
pe

op
le

 
sp

en
di

ng
 le

ss
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f e
co

no
m

y 
an

d 
po

or
 w

ea
th

er
 d

ur
in

g 
su

m
m

er

5
P

riv
at

e 
R

en
te

d 
S

ec
to

r 
A

ct
iv

ity
 -

 G
ra

nt
 In

co
m

e
(9

,8
00

)
(9

,8
00

)
+0

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 N

LP
C

T
 to

 p
ay

 fo
r 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 p

os
t f

ro
m

 O
ct

ob
er

 1
2 

to
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

13
. 

5
H

ou
si

ng
 O

pt
io

ns
 -

 G
ra

nt
 In

co
m

e
(1

3,
70

0)
(1

3,
70

0)
+0

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 N

LP
C

T
 to

 p
ay

 fo
r 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 p

os
t f

ro
m

 O
ct

ob
er

 1
2 

to
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

13
. 

2
M

or
ec

am
be

 T
H

I 2
 -

 A
 V

ie
w

 fo
r 

E
ric

+0
(7

,6
00

)
+7

,6
00

S
lip

pa
ge

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 b

ud
ge

t i
nt

o 
20

13
/1

4 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
es

te
d.

6
M

or
ec

am
be

 F
ea

si
bi

lit
y 

S
tu

di
es

+0
(2

0,
00

0)
+2

0,
00

0
S

lip
pa

ge
 o

f c
ur

re
nt

 b
ud

ge
t i

nt
o 

20
13

/1
4 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

es
te

d.

Resources

6
K

el
le

t R
oa

d 
In

du
st

ria
l E

st
at

e,
 C

ar
nf

or
th

+2
0,

00
0

?
?

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 c
la

im
 fo

r 
di

la
pi

da
tio

ns
. M

at
te

r 
st

ill
 w

ith
 L

eg
al

. O
ng

oi
ng

 fo
r 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s.

T
O

T
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
(8

7,
60

0)
(7

8,
00

0)
+2

7,
60

0

O
ve

ra
ll 

S
al

ar
y 

S
av

in
g

s
(5

2,
40

0)
(1

30
,0

00
)

+0

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
(1

40
,0

00
)

(2
08

,0
00

)
+2

7,
60

0

Environmental Services
Health & 
Housing

Regeneratio
n & Policy

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

 M
A

JO
R

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

 (
Q

tr
 3

 2
01

2/
13

)

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 P

R
T

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
  (

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 H
E

A
D

 C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

)

F
A

C
T

O
R

S
 IN

F
L

U
E

N
C

IN
G

 V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
S

+ 
= 

A
d

ve
rs

e 
( 

) 
= 

F
av

o
u

ra
b

le

Appendix A
Page 30



 

 

    
 
    
 

Budget and Performance Panel  
 

Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 
 

26 March 2013 
 

Report of Head of Resources 
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To seek the Panel’s views regarding the approved treasury management framework for 
2013/14. 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1. That Budget and Performance Panel considers the attached Treasury Management 

progress report and approved framework documents for 2013/14 and makes 
recommendations as appropriate. 

 
 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 The attached report was approved by Budget Council on 27 February 2013.  In line 

with the updated (2011) CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice, Budget and 
Performance Panel have been explicitly named as responsible for scrutiny of the 
Treasury Management function, including review of the Annual Strategy. 

 
1.2 Given the timing of Budget and Performance panel meetings, unfortunately it has not 

been possible to provide for scrutiny of the treasury proposals prior to them being 
approved by Budget Council. However, it is still important for this Panel to consider 
the framework and make any recommendations that can be fed into future reviews. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 31



CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
As set out in the attached report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
As set out in the attached report. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
As set out in the attached report. 
 

S151 and MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
As set out in the attached report. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 

Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp 
Telephone: 01524 582122 
E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 32



COUNCIL  

Treasury Management Framework 2013/14
27 February 2013 

Report of Cabinet

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
This report seeks approval for the Council’s treasury management framework for 2013/14 
onwards, including all the various elements as required under relevant legislation and the 
Code of Practice.

This report is public.

 RECOMMENDATIONS 

1) That Council approves the Treasury Management Framework and associated 
Prudential Indicators for the period 2013/14 to 2015/16 as set out in Appendices 
A to C. 

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (“the Code”) requires that a 
strategy outlining the expected treasury activity for the forthcoming 3 years be 
adopted, but that it be reviewed at least annually.  It needs to reflect treasury policy 
and cover various forecasts and activities to integrate the Council’s spending and 
income plans with decisions about investing and borrowing. 

1.2 Responsibilities associated with the Code’s requirements are set out at Appendix A.
Those aspects that require consideration by Council are covered in the following 
sections. 

2 TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

2.1 The Code requires the Council to set out a Policy Statement outlining the definition 
and objectives of its treasury management activities.  The Code requires a specific 
form of words for the Policy Statement;  this is unchanged from the current policy and 
it is set out at Appendix B.

3 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

3.1 The proposed Strategy for 2013/14 to 2015/16 is set out at Appendix C.  This 
document contains the necessary details to comply with both the Code and 
Government investment guidance.   

Page 33



3.2 Key elements and assumptions feeding into the Strategy are outlined below.  These fit 
with Cabinet’s budget proposals.   

3.3 Borrowing Aspects of the Strategy

3.3.1 Based on the draft budget, for now the physical borrowing position of the Council is 
projected to remain fairly constant over the next three years for the General Fund 
capital programme, allowing for scheduled repayments.  It is also projected that the 
Council Housing capital programme will not require any additional borrowing.  

3.3.2 This position is based on: 
! land at south Lancaster being sold in 2013/14; 
! the withdrawal from Lancaster Indoor Market and capital growth in connection 

with corporate property improvements being managed within projected cash 
resources over the period. 

3.3.3 The above points represent major assumptions and depending on their outcome, the 
debt strategy may need to be varied greatly.  If so, Member approval would be sought 
where appropriate.

3.4 Investment Aspects of the Strategy 

3.4.1 2012/13 has been dominated by a sovereign debt crisis, which has had a negative 
impact on the Euro zone as well as the UK economy, including widespread 
downgrading of banks.  This means that there is no strong argument for a significant 
relaxation of the measures taken post Iceland as counterparty strength is still a major 
risk.  There is the need, however, to ensure sufficient flexibility in managing 
investments without undermining security, and to ensure that risk appetite is 
appropriate. 

3.4.2 Accordingly, the main changes to investment limits for 2013/14 onwards are: 

" Ensuring that sufficient flexibility exists for using part-nationalised banks. 
" Allowing for a degree of flexibility so that if a need is determined then the Council 

may enter in to a cash backed Mortgage Guarantee scheme, linked to its housing 
regeneration plans. 

3.4.3 Overall, the strategy put forward follows on from 2012/13 in that it is based on the 
Council having a low risk appetite with focus on high quality deposits. 

3.4.4 There is a cost linked to a very low risk strategy as instant access accounts with good 
quality counterparties have relatively low yields. Markets are starting to offer 
significantly improved rates for longer term deposits with rates of 1.10% for a 12 
month deposit.  This is in comparison to 0.54% being the average return for the 
Council’s balances overall.  To illustrate, placing a £6M deposit for 1 year would have 
a marginal yield of £41K above that for the Council ‘average’ investment.  A 
reasonable balance needs to be made. 

4 MID YEAR REVIEW 

4.1 In accordance with the existing strategy, Council must receive a mid-year progress 
report on treasury activities.  Given that Cabinet has recently considered the Quarter 3 
treasury management report this is now presented to Council as the mid-year review 
(rather than the older Quarter 2 report). It is attached at Appendix D.

Page 34



5 CONSULTATION

5.1 Officers have liaised with Sector, the Council’s Treasury Advisors, in developing the 
proposed framework.  The approved framework is also due to be considered by 
Budget and Performance Panel at its meeting on 05 March 2013, to help inform its 
future work programme. 

6 OPTIONS AND OPTIONS ANALYSIS 

6.1 Council may put forward alternative proposals or amendments to the proposed 
Strategy in Appendix C, but these would have to be considered in light of legislative, 
professional and economic factors, and importantly, any alternative views regarding 
the Council’s risk appetite.  

6.2 Furthermore the Strategy must fit with other aspects of the budget, such as 
investment interest estimates and underlying prudential borrowing assumptions, 
feeding into Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators.   

7 CONCLUSION 

7.1 Over the coming months, key transactions should be completed and this will give a 
much clearer picture of the Council’s cashflow and in turn this will assist greatly in 
actioning the proposed treasury strategy. 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
This report seeks minor changes to the Council’s Treasury Management Policy, and fits with 
the proposed Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc) 
No direct implications arising.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
The Strategy is in support of achieving the borrowing cost and investment interest estimates 
included in the budget.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
Treasury management forms part of the s151 Officer’s responsibilities and she has no 
further comments to make regarding the proposals. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
Legal Services have been consulted and have no observations to make regarding this report 
as there are no implications directly arising.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Treasury Management in the Public 
Services. CIPFA Code of Practice and 
Cross-sector Guidance Notes (2011)

Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp 
Telephone:01524 582117 
E-mail:nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk

Page 35



Appendix A

DOCUMENT

CODE of PRACTICE To be adopted by Council (as updated 2011).

POLICY STATEMENT

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGY

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
INDICATORS

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
PRACTICES

TMP 1: Risk management TMP 7: Budgeting, accounting & audit 
TMP 2: Performance measurement TMP 8: Cash & cash flow management
TMP 3: Decision-making and analysis TMP 9: Money laundering
TMP 4: Approved instruments, methods & techniques TMP 10: Staff training & qualifications
TMP 5:

TMP 11: Use of external service providers 
TMP 6:

TMP 12: Corporate governance

TREASURY MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK DOCUMENTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Organisation, clarity and segregation of 
responsibilities, and dealing arrangememts.

These are included within the Strategy Statement as part of the framework within which treasury activities 
will be undertaken. It is the responsibility of Council to approve these limits.

The Strategy document breaks down the Policy Statement into detailed activities and sets out the 
objectives and expected market forecasts for the coming year. This also contains all the elements of an 
Investment Strategy as set out in the Government guidance; it is the responsibility of Council to approve 
this document, following referral from Cabinet. 

The Investment Strategy is included within the Treasury Management Strategy. It states which types of 
investments the Council may use for the prudent management of its treasury balances during the financial 
year. Under existing guidance the Secretary of State recommends that the Strategy should be approved 
by Council.

These are documents that set out the procedures that are in place for the Treasury Management function 
within the Council. The main principles were approved by Cabinet following initial adoption of the Code of 
Practice; they include:

The Code of Practice recommends a specific form of words to be used, to set out the Council's objectives 
within the Policy Statement for its Treasury Management activities.  It is the responsibility of Council to 
approve this document, and then note it each year thereafter if unchanged.  This reflects the revised code 
November 2011.

Any changes to the above principles will require Cabinet approval.  It is the Head of Resources' 
responsibility to maintain detailed working documents and to ensure their compliance with the main 
principles.  Quarterly treasury management reports will continue to be reported through to Members.

Reporting requirements & management 
information requirements

RESPONSIBILITY

For Consideration by Council 27 February 2013

Page 36



Appendix B

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT

For noting by Council 27 February 2013 

This reflects the revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of 
Practice (Code updated in 2011).  

1. This organisation defines its treasury management activities as: 

“The management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks”. 

2. This organisation regards the successful identification, monitoring and 
control of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its 
treasury management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the 
analysis and reporting of treasury management activities will focus on 
their risk implications for the organisation and any financial instruments 
entered into to manage these risks. 

3. This organisation acknowledges that effective treasury management will 
provide support towards the achievement of its business and service 
objectives.  It is therefore committed to the principles of achieving value 
for money in treasury management, and to employing suitable 
comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the 
context of effective risk management. 

!

Page 37



Appendix C 

Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 to 2015/16 
For Consideration by Council 27 February 2013

1 Introduction

1.1 Background 

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash 
to be raised during the year will meet cash expenditure, after allowing for any changes 
in reserves and balances.  Part of the treasury management operation is to ensure 
that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed.  
Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments commensurate 
with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before 
considering investment return. 

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of 
the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council 
can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash may 
involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses.   
On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or 
cost objectives.  

1.2 Reporting Requirements 

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals.   

Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) 

The first and most important report covers: 

! the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 
! a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure is 

charged to revenue over time); 
! the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to 

be organised) including treasury indicators; and  
! an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 

managed).

A mid year treasury management report 

This will update members with the progress of the capital position, amending 
prudential indicators as necessary, and whether the treasury strategy is meeting 
the strategy or whether any policies require revision.  In addition, quarterly reports 
will continue to be presented to Cabinet with the mid year review being forwarded 
to Council. 

An annual treasury report

This is prepared after the end of the financial year and provides details of a 
selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury 
operations compared to the estimates within the strategy. 

Page 38



1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14 

The strategy for 2013/14 covers two main areas: 

Capital issues 
! the capital plans and the prudential indicators; 
! the minimum revenue provision (MRP) strategy. 

Treasury management issues 
! the current treasury position; 
! treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 
! prospects for interest rates; 
! the borrowing strategy; 
! debt rescheduling; 
! the investment strategy; 
! creditworthiness policy; and 
! policy on use of external service providers. 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code, 
Government MRP guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and 
Government investment guidance. 

1.4 Training

The CIPFA Code requires the Head of Resources to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsibe for scrutiny.  The 
training needs of treasury management officers must also be reviewed periodically. 

The increased Member consideration of treasury management matters and the 
need to ensure officers’ knowledge and skills are kept up to date requires a 
suitable training process.  This Council addresses this important issue by 
providing Member training in liaison with its treasury advisors and through 
ongoing training and supervision of officers involved the day to day operation of 
the treasury function. 

2 The Capital Prudential Indicators 2013/14 – 2015/16 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 
management activity.  The detail of capital expenditure plans are reflected in 
prudential indicators, which aim to give an overview. 

2.1 Capital Expenditure 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, 
both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle.   

The table below summarises capital expenditure plans and how these plans are 
being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any shortfall of resources results 
in a funding borrowing need  

Page 39



Capital expenditure 
£’000

2011/12
Actual

2012/13
Estimate

2013/14
Estimate

2014/15
Estimate

2015/16
Estimate

General Fund 3,826 5,698 5,133 4,578 3,902 
HRA 3,574 3,892 4,827 4,621 4,707 
Total 7,400 9,590 9,960 9,199 8,609 
Financed by:           
Capital receipts   618 9,443     
Capital grants (general) 100 105 48     
Capital reserves 647 989 487 70 194 
Revenue 484 306 30 30 30 
Capital grants (specific) 1,262 1,226 1,245 1,229 909 
HRA:           
Capital Receipts 759 43 43 44 45 
Capital Grants (general) 90         
Capital Reserves 2,453 3,559 4,784 4,577 4,662 
Revenue 1,035 290       
Capital grants (specific) 10         
Net financing need for 
the year 

559 2,454 (6,120) 3,249 2,769 

*The relatively large capital receipt relates to the sale of land in south Lancaster 

2.2 The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which 
has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources.  It is 
essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need.  Any capital 
expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the 
CFR.

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision 
(MRP) is a statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing 
need in line with each assets life. 

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. finance leases).  Whilst 
these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, 
these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not 
required to separately borrow for these schemes.  The Council currently has 
around £6M of such schemes within the CFR. 

£’000 2011/12
Actual

2012/13
Estimate

2013/14
Estimate

2014/15
Estimate

2015/16
Estimate

Capital Financing Requirement
CFR – General Fund 36,644 37,447 29,821 31,993 33,606 
CFR – HRA 46,544 45,503 44,461 43,420 42,379 
Total CFR 83,188 82,950 74,282 75,413 75,985 
Movement in CFR 32,368     (238)  (8,668)   1,131      573 

Movement in CFR represented by
Net financing need for 
the year (above) 

34,274* 2,454 (6,120) 3,249 2,769 

Less MRP/VRP and 
other financing 
movements 

(1,906) 2,692 2,548 2,118 2,196 

Movement in CFR 32,368   (238) (8,668) 1,133   573 
*The large increase in HRA financing requirement related to the HRA Self Financing payment. 

Page 40



2.3 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund 
capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum 
revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional 
voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).   

Government regulations require the full Council to approve an MRP Statement in 
advance of each year.  A variety of options are provided to councils, so long as 
there is a prudent provision.  The Council is recommended to approve the 
following MRP Statement:

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be 
Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

! Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the regulations (this method must also be applied for any 
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction). 

This provides for reducing any associated borrowing need over the asset’s life.

Whilst there is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue 
provision, with the move to self financing equal annual instalments of principal 
are being made in respect of the 30 year loan taken out at the end 2012/13.  
There is, however, a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made, 
although there are transitional arrangements in place until CIPFA determine the 
most appropriate accounting treatment to be applied under self financing.  At 
present depreciation is based on the value of the relevant asset components 
charged over the asset lives. 

2.4 Core Funds and Expected Investment Balances

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance 
capital expenditure or to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing impact 
on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources 
(asset sales etc.).  Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for 
each resource and anticipated day to day cash flow balances. 

 Year End Resources 
£’000

2011/12
Actual

2012/13
Estimate

2013/14
Estimate

2014/15
Estimate

2015/16
Estimate

Fund balances / reserves 21,359 27,004 27,310 28,112 29,017
Capital receipts 210 0 0 0 0
Provisions 1,534 1,534 1,534 1,534 1,534
Other 200 100 0 0 0
Total core funds 23,303 28,638 28,844 29,646 30,551
Internal Investments* 6,188 7,129 (263) 2,067 3,791
Expected investments 17,115 21,509 29,107 27,579 26,760
*Internal investments relate to the difference between the CFR and the debt position as stated in section 3.1. 

2.5 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required 
to assess the affordability of the capital investment plans.   These provide an 
indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall 
finances.

Page 41



2.6 Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long 
term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 

2011/12
Actual

2012/13
Estimate

2013/14
Estimate

2014/15
Estimate

2015/16
Estimate

General Fund 17.8% 14.7% 14.2% 12.3% 12.2%
HRA 6.7% 24.2% 23.2% 22.3% 21.7%

Overall Total 13.7% 18.5% 17.9% 16.4% 16.1%

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals 
in this budget report. 

2.7 Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions on Council Tax 

This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to the 
three year capital programme recommended in the budget report compared to the 
Council’s existing approved commitments and current plans.   

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D council tax.
2011/12
Actual

2012/13
Estimate

2013/14
Estimate

2014/15
Estimate

2015/16
Estimate

Council tax - band D £2.28 -£4.20 £1.03 £3.13 £5.98
Percentage Change 1.19% -2.18% 0.53% 1.56% 2.93%
The large impact on band D council tax is due to a delayed capital receipt, relating to the sale of land in south Lancaster. 
This receipt is expected to be received during 2013/14.  

Illustrative impact of an additional £1M borrowing is shown below. 

5 Years 10 Years 25 Years 

Increase in Council Tax £4.78 £2.53 £1.33 
Percentage Change 2.49% 1.31% 0.95% 

!
!

3 Borrowing 

The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in 
accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to 
meet capital expenditure plans and related service activity.  This will involve both the 
organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of 
approporiate borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant treasury / 
prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the annual 
investment strategy. 

3.1 Current Portfolio Position 

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2012 and forward projections are  
summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the treasury 
management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need (the Capital 
Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  

Page 42



£’000 2011/12
Actual

2012/13
Estimate

2013/14
Estimate

2014/15
Estimate

2015/16
Estimate

External Debt 
Debt at 1 April  70,872 70,109 69,068 68,027 66,985
Other long-term liabilities 
(OLTL) 

6,128 5,712 5,477 5,319 5,209

Total external debt at 31 
March

77,000 75,821 74,545 73,346 72,195

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

83,188 82,950 74,282 75,413 75,985

Under / (over) borrowing 6,188 7,129 (263) 2,067 3,791

Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure 
that the Council operates its activities within well defined limits.  One of these is 
that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, 
exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional 
CFR for 2013/14 and the following two financial years.  The over borrowing shown in 
2013/14 reflects the application of the receipt from the sale of land at South Lancaster  
to reduce the underlying need to borrow, thereby reducing the CFR in that year.  
Thereafter, there is some flexibility for limited borrowing for future years.    

The Head of Resources reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  This 
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in 
this budget report.   

3.2 Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity 

The operational boundary.  This is the limit that external debt is not normally 
expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but 
may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt. 

Operational boundary 
£m

2012/13
Estimate

2013/14
Estimate

2014/15
Estimate

2015/16
Estimate

Debt 77  78  71  71  
Other long term liabilities 5  5  5  5  
Total 82  83  76  76  

The authorised limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a limit 
beyond which external debt is prohibited.  It reflects the level of external debt that, 
whilst not desired, could be afforded in the short term but may be unsustainable 
in the longer term.  It is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the 
Local Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either 
the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this power 
has not yet been exercised. 

Authorised limit £m 2012/13
Estimate

2013/14
Estimate

2014/15
Estimate

2015/16
Estimate

Debt 94  93  87  87  
Other long term liabilities 6  6  6  6  
Total 100  99  93  93  

HRA Limit on 
Indebtedness £m

2012/13
Estimate

2013/14
Estimate

2014/15
Estimate

2015/16
Estimate

Debt 60  60 60 60  

Page 43



3.3 Prospects for interest rates 

The Council has appointed Sector as its treasury advisor and part of their service 
is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates.  The following table 
and commentary gives the Sector central view. 

Annual
Average % 

Bank Rate PWLB Borrowing Rates 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

5 year 25 year 50 year 
Dec 2012 0.50 1.50 3.70 3.90 
March 2013 0.50 1.50 3.80 4.00 
June 2013 0.50 1.50 3.80 4.00 
Sept 2013 0.50 1.60 3.80 4.00 
Dec 2013 0.50 1.60 3.80 4.00 
March 2014 0.50 1.70 3.90 4.10 
June 2014 0.50 1.70 3.90 4.10 
Sept 2014 0.50 1.80 4.00 4.20 
Dec 2014 0.50 2.00 4.10 4.30 
March 2015 0.75 2.20 4.30 4.50 
June 2015 1.00 2.30 4.40 4.60 
Sept 2015 1.25 2.50 4.60 4.80 
Dec 2015 1.50 2.70 4.80 5.00 
March 2016 1.75 2.90 5.00 5.20 

The economic recovery in the UK since 2008 has been the worst and slowest 
recovery in recent history, although the economy returned to positive growth in the 
third quarter of 2012.  Growth prospects are weak and consumer spending, the usual 
driving force of recovery, is likely to remain under pressure due to consumers 
focusing on repayment of personal debt, inflation eroding disposable income, and 
general malaise about the economy and employment fears. 

The primary drivers of the UK economy are likely to remain external.  40% of UK 
exports go to the Eurozone  so the difficulties in this area are likely to continue to 
hinder  UK growth.  The US, the main world economy, faces similar debt problems to 
the UK, but urgently needs to resolve the fiscal cliff now that the the Presidential 
elections are out of the way.  The resulting US fiscal tightening and continuing 
Eurozone problems will depress UK growth and it is likely to see the UK deficit 
reduction plans slip. 

This challenging and uncertain economic outlook has several key treasury 
mangement implications: 

! The Eurozone sovereign debt difficulties provide a clear indication of  high 
counterparty risk.  This continues to suggest the use of higher quality 
counterparties for shorter time periods. 

! Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2013/14 and 
beyond.

! Borrowing interest rates continue to be  attractive and may remain relatively 
low for some time.  The timing of any borrowing will need to be monitored 
carefully. 

! There will remain a cost of carry – any borrowing undertaken that results in 
an increase in investments will incur a revenue loss between borrowing 
costs and investment returns.  

Page 44



3.4 Borrowing strategy  

The continued uncertainty over future interest rates increases the risks associated 
with treasury activity.  As a result there is no strong argument for a significant 
relaxation of the Council’s treasury strategy.   

The Head of Resources, under delegated powers, will take the most appropriate form 
of borrowing depending on the prevailing interest rates at the time, if need be, taking 
into account the risks shown in the forecast above.  It is likely that shorter term fixed 
rates may provide lower cost opportunities in the short term.  

Borrowing will only be taken on once a liability has been established although the 
timing of the borrowing may precede the point at which the liability actually falls due 
for payment. This would only be done to secure a preferential position for the Council, 
for example to benefit from lower interest rates. 

With the likelihood of rates increasing, any debt restructuring is likely to focus on 
switching from longer term fixed rates to cheaper shorter term debt, although the 
Head of Resources and treasury consultants will monitor prevailing rates for any 
opportunities during the year. The benefit of this will be balanced against the risks 
attached to the more frequent refinancing that would be required. 

The option of postponing borrowing and running down investment balances will be 
considered primarliry.  This would have the added benefit of further reducing 
counterparty risk and also could support the revenue situation with the cost of loans 
currently far outweighing the return on investments. 

4 Investment Strategy  

4.1 Investment Strategy 2012/13 to 2014/15 

The primary objective of the Council’s investment strategy is to safeguard the re-
payment of the principal and interest of its investments, with ensuring adequate 
liquidity being the second objective, and achieving investment returns being the 
third.

The types of investment allowable are categorised as either Specified and Non 
Specified investments.  Details of these are set out in Annex B(1).

The current investment climate has an over-riding risk consideration, that of 
counterparty security risk.  The Head of Resources will maintain a counterparty 
list in compliance with the following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit 
them to Council for approval as necessary.  The use of these criteria provides an 
overall pool of counterparties that are considered as high quality and that may be 
chosen for investment, subject to other considerations. 

The rating criteria use the lowest common denominator method of selecting 
counterparties and applying limits.  This means that the application of the 
Council’s minimum criteria will apply to the lowest available rating for any 
institution.  For instance, if an institution is rated by two agencies, one meets the 
Council’s criteria, the other does not, the institution will fall outside of the lending 
criteria.  This complies with a CIPFA Treasury Management Panel 
recommendation in March 2009 and the Code. 

Credit rating information is supplied by the Council’s treasury consultants (Sector) 
on all active counterparties that comply with the criteria below.  Any counterparty 
failing to meet the criteria will be omitted from the counterparty (dealing) list.  Any 
rating changes, rating watches (notification of a likely change), rating outlooks 
(notification of a possible longer term change) are provided to officers almost 

Page 45



immediately after they occur and this information is considered before dealing.  
More information on credit ratings is included in Annex B(2).

The criteria for providing a pool of high credit quality investment counterparties 
(for both specified and non-specified investments) are: 

Banks 1 - Good Credit Quality 

 The Council will only use banks that: 

- are UK banks; or 
- are non-UK but are domiciled in an EU country with a long term 

sovereignty rating of AAA, 

and have, as a minimum, the following Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and 
Poors credit ratings (where rated, as is consistent with the middle limit as 
per table 3): 

i. Short Term:  F1/P-1/A-1 

ii. Long Term:  A/A2/A

iii. Individual Viability / Financial Strength:  bb+/C (Fitch / Moody’s only) 

iv. Support:  3 (Fitch only) 

Banks 2 – Part nationalised UK banks
Lloyds Bank and Royal Bank of Scotland. These banks can be included if 
they continue to be part nationalised or if they meet the ratings in Banks 1 
above. Investment limits will be subject to the short and long term rating 
limits in the table at 4.2 below. 

Banks 3 – The Council’s own Banker 

The bank may be used for transactional purposes if the bank falls below 
the above criteria, although in this case balances will be minimised in both 
monetary size and time. 

Building Societies – all Societies that meet the ratings for banks outlined 
above.

Money Market Funds – AAA-rated sterling funds with constant unit value. 

UK Government –  Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF). 

Local Authorities (including Police and Fire Authorities), Parish 
Councils

Supranational institutions  (e.g. European Central Bank). 

Due care will be taken to consider the country, group and sector exposure of the 
Council’s investments.  In part the country selection will be chosen by the credit 
rating of the Sovereign state in Banks 1 above.  In addition:

! no more than 25% will be placed with any one non-UK country at any time;

! limits in place above will apply to Group companies (eg Natwest and RBS 
count as a single counterparty);

! Sector’s limits will be monitored. 

The Code and Investment Guidance require the Council to supplement credit 
rating information.  Whilst the Council’s strategy relies primarily on the application 
of credit ratings to provide a pool of appropriate counterparties for officers to use, 
additional operational market information will be applied before making any 

Page 46



specific investment decision from the agreed pool of counterparties.  This 
additional market information (e.g. credit default swaps, equity price, and media 
coverage) will be reviewed prior to investments being placed.

For the above categories of Specified and Non Specified Investments, and in 
accordance with the Code, the Council has developed additional criteria to set the 
maximum amounts that may be invested in these bodies. The criteria, using the 
lowest common denominator approach, are set out below. 

4.2 Counterparty Criteria and Investment Limits 

Minimum across all three 
ratings

Fitch Moody’s Standard
& Poors 

Money 
Limit8 Time Limiit9

£6M Instant access 
only 

Upper Limit1 F1+/AA- P-1/AA3 A-1+/AA- 

£3M 100 days 
Middle Limit2 F1/A P-1/A2 A-1/A £3M Instant access 

only 
Other Institutions3 N/A N/A N/A £6M 1 Year 
Lancashire 
County4

N/A N/A N/A £12M 1 Year 

Money Market 
Funds5

AAA AAA AAA £6M Instant Access 
Only 

DMADF deposit6 N/A N/A N/A No limit 1 Year 
Sovereign rating to 
apply to all non UK 
counterparties7

AAA AAA AAA N/A N/A 

Notes:   
1 & 2: The Upper and Middle Limits apply to appropriately rated banks and building    
           societies.  
3: The Other Institutions limit applies to other local authorities and supranational 
 institutions (i.e. ECB), and non-specified investments (including part-
 nationalised banks). 
4: This recognises the special status of Lancashire County Council as the City     
           Council’s upper tier authority. 
5: Sterling, constant net asset value funds only. 
6: The DMADF facility is direct with the UK government; it is extremely low risk. 
7: UK counterparties are defined as those listed under UK banks or building  
           societies in the Sector counterparty listing.  
8: Money limits apply to principal invested and do not include accrued interest. 
9:  Time Limits start on the trade date for the investment. 

In the normal course of the Authority’s cash flow operations it is expected that 
both Specified and Non Specified investments will be utilised for the control of 
liquidity as both categories allow for short term investments.  The Council will 
maintain a minimum £2M of investments in Specified investments provided that 
the cashflow allows for this.  In addition, although the Council will consider using 
Non Specified investments, these should not exceed 50% of the portfolio at any 
one time. The limits applied will be consistent with the short and long term ratings 
in the above table. 

The use of longer term instruments (greater than one year from trade date to 
maturity) and forward deals will not be used.

Page 47



There is some operational difficulty arising from the legacy of the banking crisis; 
although there is some value returning to longer term investment, credit risk 
remains within the market.  Whilst some selective options do provide additional 
yield, uncertainty over counterparty creditworthiness indicates that shorter dated 
investments still provide better security.  However, in line with limits in the 
previous table, fixed term investing is judged to be acceptable for certain 
institutions or where certain credit rating limits are met. 

Council is asked to approve the base criteria above, although the Head of 
Resources may temporarily restrict further investment activity to those 
counterparties considered of higher credit quality than the minimum criteria set 
out for approval. 

4.3 Risk Benchmarking 

A further development in terms of managing risk is the use of benchmarks.  Yield 
benchmarks are currently widely used to assess investment performance but 
there is little comparative data available to Members to assess where this 
strategy sits in comparison to other authorities in terms of the types of 
counterparty used and the lengths of deposit. 

At present, the criteria set down above and through the treasury management 
indicators below, limit activity in terms of length of deposit (liquidity) and in terms 
of strength of the counterparty (security). The current strategy follows on from the 
2012/13 strategy in being low risk through, for example, restricting the amount 
and length of deposit in any one counterparty as well as requiring high liquidity on 
most large deposits.  The use of information from other authorities might allow the 
officers to refine the investment strategy once it is clearer how other local districts 
are performing and the investment parameters they are using. Officers will work 
towards obtaining comparative information from other Districts over the course of 
2013/14 with a view to presenting this information to Members in due course.

4.4 Treasury Management Indicators and Limits on Activity 

There are four mandatory treasury management indicators.  The purpose of 
these indicators is to contain the activity of the treasury function within certain 
limits, thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of an adverse movement in 
interest rates.  The indicators are as follows: 

! Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure – This indicator identifies a 
maximum limit for fixed interest rates based upon the debt position net of 
investments.  

! Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure – Similar to the previous 
indicator, this covers a maximum limit on variable interest rates. 

! Maturity structures of borrowing – These gross limits are set to reduce the 
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and 
are required for upper and lower limits.

! Total principal funds invested for greater than 364 days – given the current 
economic climate the Authority is not willing to risk investing sums for fixed 
terms of greater than 1 year and so this is £0. 

Page 48



Treasury Management Indicators 

£m 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Interest rate exposures (TM 1 & TM 2) 
  Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates based on net debt 

100% 100% 100% 

Limits on variable interest 
rates based on net debt 

30% 30% 30% 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing (TM3) 
  Lower Upper Lower Upper Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 50% 0% 50% 0% 50% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 50% 0% 50% 0% 50% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 50% 0% 50% 0% 50% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 50% 0% 50% 0% 50% 

10 years to 15 years 0% 100% 0% 100% 0% 100% 

15 years to 25 years 0% 100% 0% 100% 0% 100% 

25 years to 50 years 50% 100% 50% 100% 50% 100% 

Actual current position (not including new HRA debt) 
Under 12 months 0%     

12 months to 2 years 0%     

2 years to 5 years 0%     

5 years to 10 years 0%     

10 years to 15 years 0%     

15 years to 25 years 0%     

25 years to 50 years 100%     

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days (TM 4) 

Principal sums invested, in 
2013/14 for periods of greater 
than 364 days, to mature after 
the end of each financial year 

£0M £0M £0M

4.5 Treasury Management Advisers

The Council currently uses Sector as its treasury management consultants.  The 
company provides a range of services that include: 

! technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues and the 
drafting of Member reports;

! economic and interest rate analysis;
! debt services which includes advice on the timing of borrowing;
! debt rescheduling advice surrounding the existing portfolio;
! generic investment advice on interest rates, timing and investment 

instruments;
! credit ratings/market information service comprising the three main credit 

rating agencies.

Whilst the advisers provide support to the internal treasury function, under current 
market rules and the Code the final decision on treasury matters remains with the 
Council.  The service is subject to regular review.

Page 49



Annex A
Treasury Management Glossary of Terms

! Annuity – method of repaying a loan where the payment amount remains uniform 
throughout the life of the loan, therefore the split varies such that the proportion of the 
payment relating to the principal increases as the amount of interest decreases. 

! CIPFA – the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, is the 
professional body for accountants working in Local Government and other public 
sector organisations, also the standard setting organisation for Local Government 
Finance. 

! Call account – instant access deposit account. 

! Counterparty – an institution (e.g. a bank) with whom a borrowing or investment 
transaction is made. 

! Credit Rating – is an opinion on the credit-worthiness of an institution, based on 
judgements about the future status of that institution.  It is based on any information 
available regarding the institution: published results, Shareholders’ reports, reports 
from trading partners, and also an analysis of the environment in which the institution 
operates (e.g. its home economy, and its market sector).  The main rating agencies 
are Fitch, Standard and Poor’s, and Moody’s.  They analyse credit worthiness under 
four headings: 

! Short Term Rating – the perceived ability of the organisation to meet its 
obligations in the short term, this will be based on measures of liquidity. 

! Long Term Rating – the ability of the organisation to repay its debts in the 
long term, based on opinions regarding future stability, e.g. its exposure to 
‘risky’ markets. 

! Individual/Financial Strength Rating – a measure of an institution’s 
soundness on a stand-alone basis based on its structure, past performance 
and credit profile. 

! Legal Support Rating – a view of the likelihood, in the case of a financial 
institution failing, that its obligations would be met, in whole or part, by its 
shareholders, central bank, or national government. 

The rating agencies constantly monitor information received regarding financial 
institutions, and will amend the credit ratings assigned as necessary. 

! DMADF and the DMO – The DMADF is the ‘Debt Management Account Deposit 
Facility’; this is highly secure fixed term deposit account with the Debt 
Management Office (DMO), part of Her Majesty’s Treasury.

! EIP – Equal Instalments of Principal, a type of loan where each payment includes 
an equal amount in respect of loan principal, therefore the interest due with each 
payment reduces as the principal is eroded, and so the total amount reduces with 
each instalment. 

! Gilts – the name given to bonds issued by the UK Government.  Gilts are issued 
bearing interest at a specified rate, however they are then traded on the markets like 

Page 50



shares and their value rises or falls accordingly.  The Yield on a gilt is the interest paid 
divided by the Market Value of that gilt. 
Eg. a 30 year gilt is issued in 1994 at £1, bearing interest of 8%.  In 1999 the market 
value of the gilt is £1.45.  The yield on that gilt is calculated as 8%/1.45 = 5.5%.   
See also PWLB. 

! LIBID – The London Inter-Bank Bid Rate, the rate which banks would have to bid to 
borrow funds from other banks for a given period.  The official rate is published by the 
Bank of England at 11am each day based on trades up to that time. 

! LIBOR – The London Inter-Bank Offer Rate, the rate at which banks with surplus 
funds are offering to lend them to other banks, again published at 11am each day. 

! Liquidity – Relates to the amount of readily available or short term investment money 
which can be used for either day to day or unforeseen expenses. For example Call 
Accounts allow instant daily access to invested funds.  

! Maturity – Type of loan where only payments of interest are made during the life of 
the loan, with the total amount of principal falling due at the end of the loan period. 

! Money Market Fund (MMF) – Type of investment where the Council purchases a 
share of a cash fund that makes short term deposits with a broad range of high quality 
counterparties. These are highly regulated in terms of average length of deposit and 
counterparty quality, to ensure AAA rated status.  

! Policy and Strategy Documents – documents required by the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management in Local Authorities.  These set out the framework 
for treasury management operations during the year. 

! Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) – a central government agency providing long 
and short term loans to Local Authorities.  Rates are set daily at a margin over the Gilt 
yield (see Gilts above).  Loans may be taken at fixed or variable rates and as Annuity, 
Maturity, or EIP loans (see separate definitions) over periods of up to fifty years.  
Financing is also available from the money markets, however because of its nature 
the PWLB is generally able to offer better terms. 

! Sector – Sector are the City Council’s Treasury Management advisors. They provide 
advice on borrowing strategy, investment strategy, and vetting of investment 
counterparties, in addition to ad hoc guidance throughout the year. 

! Yield – see Gilts 

Members may also wish to make reference to The Councillor’s Guide to Local 
Government Finance. 

Page 51



Annex B (1) 

Definitions of Specified and Non Specified Investments 

See the detailed Investment Strategy for the limits to be applied. 

1 Specified Investments are defined as follows. 

2 Non-specified Investments are defined as follows: 

Non-specified investments are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as 
Specified above). The identification and rationale supporting the selection of these 
other investments are set out below. Non specified investments not explicitly 
referred to below are excluded. 

Ref Non Specified Investment Category 
Limit

(i) A body which has been provided with a government issued 
guarantee for wholesale deposits within specific timeframes.   

Where these guarantees are in place and the government has an 
AAA sovereign long term rating these institutions will be included 
within the Council’s criteria temporarily until such time as the ratings 
improve or the guarantees are withdrawn.  Monies will only be 
deposited within the timeframe of the guarantee. 

Included as per 
table in 4.2  

(ii) Lloyds Bank and Royal Bank of Scotland. These banks can be 
included if they continue to be part nationalised. 

Included as per 
table in 4.2 

(iii) The Council’s own banker if it fails to meet the basic credit criteria.  In 
this instance balances will be minimised as far as is possible. 

Included as per 
table in 4.2 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS 
These are to be sterling investments of a maturity period of not more than 364 days, or those which 
could be for a longer period but where the Council has the right to be repaid within 364 days if it 
wishes. These are low risk assets where the possibility of loss of principal or investment income is 
considered negligible. These include investments with: 

(i) The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Office, UK Treasury Bills or a Gilt with 
less than one year to maturity). 

(ii Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration. 

(iii) A local authority, parish council or community council. 

(iv) An investment scheme that has been awarded a high credit rating by a credit rating agency. 

(v) A body with high credit quality (such as a bank or building society). 

For category (iv) this covers a money market fund AAA rated by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s or 
Fitch rating agencies. 

Page 52



Annex B(2) 
Background Information on Credit Ratings 

Credit ratings are an important part of the Authority’s investment strategy. The information below 
summarises some of the key features of credit ratings and why they are important. 

What is a Credit Rating?

A credit rating is: 
! An independent assessment of an organisation; 
! It gauges the likelihood of getting money back on the terms it was invested; 
! It is a statement of opinion, not statement of fact; 
! They help to measure the risk associated with investing with a counterparty; 

Who Provides / Uses Credit Ratings?

There are three main ratings agencies, all of which are used in the Authority’s treasury strategy. 
! Fitch 
! Moody’s Investor Services 
! Standard & Poors 

The ratings supplied by these agencies are used by a broad range of institutions to help with 
investment decisions, these include: 

– Local Authorities; 
– Other non-financial institutional investors; 
– Financial institutions; 
– Regulators; 
– Central Banks; 

Rating Criteria

There are many different types of rating supplied by the agencies. The key ones used by the 
Authority are ratings to indicate the likelihood of getting money back on terms invested. These can 
be split into two main categories: 

– ‘Short Term’ ratings for time horizons of 12 months or less. These may be 
considered as the most important for local authorities. 

– ‘Long Term’ ratings for time horizons of over 12 months. These may be 
considered as less important in the current climate. 

In addition, the agencies issue sovereign, individual and support ratings which will also feed into the 
investment strategy. 

Rating Scales (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors)

The table below shows how some of the higher graded short and long term ratings compare across 
the agencies; the top line represents the highest grade possible.   (There are other ratings that go 
much lower than those shown below, and ratings for other elements.) 

Short Term Long Term 

Fitch Moody’s S&P Fitch Moody’s S&P 

F1+ P-1 A-1+ AAA Aaa AAA 

F1 P-1 A-1 AA Aa2 AA 

F2 P-2 A-2 A A2 A 

Page 53



Appendix D 

2012/13 Treasury Management Progress Report to  
31 December 2012 

Report of Head of Resources

Introduction

It is a requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management that 
regular monitoring reports are presented to Members on treasury activities.  These 
reports will normally be presented soon after the end of June, September, December 
and March as part of the Council’s performance management framework. 

Council approved the Treasury Strategy including the Investment Strategy for 
2012/13 at its meeting on 29 February 2012. This report outlines activities 
undertaken in pursuance of those strategies during the financial year up to the end of 
Quarter 3. 

Treasury management is a technical area.  To assist with the understanding of this 
report, a glossary of terms commonly used in Treasury Management is attached at 
Appendix C - Annex A.  In addition, the Councillor’s Guide to Local Government 
Finance also has a section on treasury and cash management and this is available 
through the Member Information section on the Intranet.

Summary 

! Payments have been made by KSF and Landsbanki, leaving outstanding 
amounts due of £154K and £583K respectively. 

! On other treasury matters, since the HRA self financing transaction at the end 
of 2011/12 there have been no changes to the debt portfolio. No temporary 
borrowing was required during the quarter and no new long term debt has 
been taken on. 

! There have been no material breaches of any prudential indicators or 
counterparty limits in the quarter and no other major risks have been 
identified.

Economic update (provided by Sector) 

The Eurozone debt crisis has continued to cast a pall over the world economy and has 
depressed growth in most countries.  This has impacted the UK economy which is 
unlikely to grow significantly in 2012 and is creating a major headwind for recovery in 
2013. Quarter 2 of 2012 was the third quarter of contraction in the economy; this 
recession is the worst and slowest recovery of any of the five recessions since 1930.  A 
return to growth at 1% in quarter 3 in unlikely to prove anything more than a washing out 
of the dip in the previous quarter before a return to weak, or even negative, growth in 
quarter 4.  

Given the weak outlook for economic growth, Sector sees the prospects for any changes 
in Bank Rate before 2015 as very limited.  There is potential for the start of Bank Rate 
increases to be even further delayed if growth disappoints. 

Economic growth has basically flat lined since the election of 2010 and, worryingly, 
the economic forecasts for 2012 and beyond were revised substantially lower in the 

Page 54



Bank of England Inflation quarterly report for August 2012 and were then further 
lowered in the November Report. Quantitative Easing (QE) was increased again by 
£50bn in July 2012 to a total of £375bn.  Many forecasters are expecting the MPC to 
vote for a further round of QE to stimulate economic activity regardless of any near-
term optimism. The announcement in November 2012 that £35bn will be transferred 
from the Bank of England’s Asset Purchase Facility to the Treasury (representing 
coupon payments to the Bank by the Treasury on gilts held by the Bank) is also 
effectively a further addition of QE. 

!

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences weighing on the 
UK. Key areas of uncertainty include: 

! The impact of the Eurozone crisis on financial markets and the banking 
sector.

! The impact of the UK Government’s austerity plan on confidence and growth. 

! Monetary policy action failing to stimulate growth in western economies. 

! The potential for weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - 
the EU and US.

! The potential for political issues to have an adverse impact e.g. trade disputes 
or political upheaval in the Middle East.

Sector believes that the longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise due 
to the high volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and the high volume of debt issuance in 
other major western countries.  The interest rate forecast in this report represents a 
balance of downside and upside risks.  The downside risks have already been 
commented on.  However, there are upside risks as follows to PWLB rates and gilt 
yields, and especially to longer term rates and yields as the effects of Quantitative 
Easing reverse and the UK status as a relative safe haven declines as other 
economies improve. 

Icelandic Investments Update 

As reported in the year end report for 2011/12 there have been material repayments 
made against the Council’s Icelandic deposits from all three banks. During quarter 1 
2012/13 repayments were received from KSF (10%) and Landsbanki (12%). In 

Page 55



quarter 3 further payments from Landsbanki (5.8%) and KSF (3%) were received. 
The current position is summarised below: 

KSF Glitnir Landsbanki Total 
  £000 £000 £000 £000 
Deposit 2,000 3,000 1,000 6,000
Claim 2,048 3,173 1,121 6,342
Payments received 1,556 2,508 529 4,593
Amounts held in ISK*   571 8 579
         
Total anticipated recovery 
(%) 83.50% 100% 100%   
Further payments due (%) 7.50% 0% 52%   
Further payments due 
(£000) 154 0 583 737
         
Total anticipated receipts 1,710 3,079 1,119 5,908

*These are earning interest but are also subject to currency fluctuations, these sums will be repatriated once 
Icelandic currency controls allow. 

The total repayment in cash terms is now expected to be £5.9M meaning that the 
majority of the £6M principal invested will be returned. 

Current Borrowing Rates. 

There are few changes in relation to the cost of new debt. The graph below shows 
that the pattern seen since January 2009 has persisted, with a marked spread 
between short term and long term borrowing. Further, rates remain at their 
depressed levels even compared to the range seen over the last 6 months. 

Extract from Sector weekly debt monitor 7/1/2013 

However, as the Council is not currently looking to borrow, there is little immediate 
impact of these low rates. The main issue going forward could be that the margin 
between the Council’s current loans and the threshold for avoiding penalties for early 
repayment will also increase but there are currently no plans to make early 
repayments and it will not be clear whether this is an attractive strategy until the cash 

Page 56



demands linked to Lancaster Indoor Market are clarified, hopefully during quarters 3 
and 4. 

The £31M loan taken out at the end of March in respect of ending the HRA subsidy 
system was drawn down as an Equal Instalment of Principal (EIP) loan at 3.03% 
compared to the estimated 3.5%.  This has resulted in annual saving of 
approximately £432K in interest which is split between the General Fund (£364K) 
and the HRA (£68K). 

Investing Activities

As laid down in the approved Investment Strategy, the aim is to prioritise security and 
liquidity of the Council’s investments.  This is to ensure that the Council has sufficient 
cash to support its business, but also to minimise any further chance of a 
counterparty failing and the Council not being able to remove its deposits, as 
happened with the Icelandic banks. 

All investment activity has been in line with the approved Treasury Strategy for 
2012/13.  No fixed term investments have been placed; surplus cash has been 
managed on a day to day basis using the call accounts and Money Market Funds 
(MMF).  A full list of the investments at the end of Quarter 3 is shown below. 

Investment pattern for the prior 2 years

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

40,000,000

01
/01

/1
1

01
/04

/1
1

01
/07

/1
1

01
/10

/1
1

01
/01

/1
2

01
/04

/1
2

01
/07

/1
2

01
/10

/1
2

01
/01

/1
3

Date

B
al

an
ce

 (£
) MMF

DMADF

Call

Iceland

Fixed 

Page 57



In the last quarter the Council has tried to make full use of the capacity with the 
County Council, once current cash demands become clear it may be that fixed term 
deposits are placed with County although they are at present fully borrowed and not 
taking on further deposits. Towards the end of the first quarter, credit rating changes 
to RBS and Barclays meant that these counterparties fell off the investment list.  This 
is being addressed in developing next year’s strategy. 

Given this and the reduced ability to place deposits with County, lower yielding 
accounts have been used such as the DMADF and governmental MMF accounts 
with a resultant loss of investment income. In addition, cash balances are lower than 
anticipated in the budget, the main reason being the ongoing delays with realising 
material capital receipts.  

Summary of Budget Position and Performance

In terms of performance against external benchmarks, the return on investments 
compared to the 7 day LIBID and bank rates over the year to date is as follows: 

Base Rate    0.50% 
7 day LIBID    0.41% 
Lancaster CC investments  0.54% 

The return is just above base and is better than the 7 day LIBID benchmark which is 
positive given that the Council’s investments are in the main on instant access. In 
absolute terms as the Council has focused on secure and highly liquid deposits the 
rate of return is very modest however, for the type of investment the Council is 
making, it is a reasonable rate. 

In terms of performance against budget, the details are as follows: 

 Annual 
Budget

Profiled
Budget

Actual to 
Date

Variance

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Icelandic
Credits

50 38 38 0

Cash Interest 164 123 99 24
Total 214 161 137 24

There is an £24K adverse variance which is jointly due to lower cash balances than 
anticipated, as noted in section 6, as well as reduced capacity on higher yielding 
accounts following limits placed by the County and credit rating reductions to 
Barclays and RBS.

The credits from Icelandic investments are accounting adjustments to the 
investments that still held with the Icelandic banks. These are real credits to the 
General Fund balance but are subject to adjustments depending on changes to the 
repayment profile of outstanding amounts. At present there is no reason to alter the 
assumptions made at budget time but this will be kept under review.  

Risk management 

There has been no material change in the policy or operation of the treasury function 
over the quarter, in recognition of the considerable uncertainty that exists within the 
economy and financial sector. The view is, therefore, that residual counterparty risk 
exposure for investment remains low. 

Page 58



There is financial risk attached to the longer term debt portfolio, associated with 
interest rate exposure but all of the debt is on fixed interest and there has been no 
change to this over the quarter. The low rates create a risk in terms of the ability to 
repay debt but the Council is not yet in position to be following such a strategy. 

There have been very positive developments with the Icelandic banks over the last 3 
quarters and the risk attached to uncertainty of the Council’s creditor status has now 
been extinguished. There are still uncertainties over the timing and exact amounts of 
repayments, as well as how elements already repaid in ISK will be repatriated. 

Further, there is an interest rate risk attached to the current investment strategy 
where the Council, as at December 2012, had only those nationalised or part 
nationalised high street banks it could deal with, on an instant access basis. The 
cost/benefit of the current strategy in being reviewed to ensure that the risk of 
foregone income is being actively monitored against a level of counterparty risk that 
is acceptable. 

!

Page 59



 

 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL  
  
 

The Effect of the Current Economic Climate and Changes 
to Planning Legislation on Related Revenue Coming into 

the Council 
 

26 March 2013  
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF REGENERATION AND 
PLANNING 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
To brief the panel on the most significant impacts of the current economic climate and 
changes in planning legislation on income received by the Council relating to its 
Regeneration and Planning function.   
 

 
This report is public.  
 

 
 
Recommendations: 
 

(1) That the report be noted and that Members consider any comments they would 
wish to make. 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The economic downturn, which began in 2008, had wide ranging impacts on the 

world economy.  Those impacts affect almost every strand of everyday life so it is 
difficult, when trying to evaluate how revenue to one type of organisation has been 
affected, to cover all the potential impacts comprehensively.   Some impacts were 
immediate such as building companies, negotiating with the council to submit 
development proposals, suddenly going into receivership.  Others were gradual such 
as the reduction in economic activity giving rise to a decline in planning and building 
control income through fees for applications. 

 
1.2 A summary of the most significant impacts targeted at revenue streams is the best 

that can be achieved realistically with the trends currently being observed providing 
commentary to try and plan for the future. 

 
 2.0 Detail     
 

2.1 External Funding Programmes.  Shortly after the general election the Government 
abolished the North West Development Agency and with it went a number of funding 
streams for regeneration activity.  Historically, the City Council has performed well in 

Agenda Item 8 Page 60



attracting external funding for regeneration projects with the support of the NWDA.  In 
addition, the funding allocations administered by the Homes and Communities 
Agency and the Regional Housing Pot were removed.  As a consequence of these 
fiscal measures key projects which no longer had access to regeneration funding 
were Lancaster Science Park, the Chatsworth Gardens Housing Exemplar scheme, 
and other continuing housing regeneration opportunities in the West End of 
Morecambe.  It is difficult to place exact figures on the amount of funding potentially 
lost because the next stage of funding had not been agreed for these projects.  
However, as a guide, around £7m might have been obtained for infrastructure on 
Lancaster Science Park and around £2.3 m was originally sought for the housing 
exemplar scheme. 

 
2.2 The abolition of the NWDA has however been mitigated in part by the establishment 

of a Local Enterprise Partnership for Lancashire which is supported in secretarial 
terms by the County Council.  The LEP has been allocated funds to distribute on the 
basis of local economic priorities.  It should be noted that the funds available to the 
LEP for allocation are much smaller than those which were previously available to 
the NWDA, and that bids for funding are usually made for loans rather than grants.  
The City Council’s officers have been working closely with the County Council’s 
Economic Development arm to ensure that schemes in Lancaster district which have 
major regeneration potential have access to these funds.   In addition to the LEP 
there have been various sources of funding for regeneration projects which officers 
have sought to access using the bidding experience developed over many years.  
The Homes and Communities Agency have been particularly supportive in providing 
funds. By December 2012 £3m in additional external funding had been raised for 
regeneration work since the abolition of the NWDA and £4M Growing Places loan 
facilitated for the clean up of Luneside East.  A further “in principle” commitment to 
£6m has been given in relation to other schemes.  

 
2.3 Members should note that when bidding for external funding, the Council must 

ensure that it does not commit itself to match funding that cannot be afforded or does 
not have the appropriate approval.  Either match funding in officer time or with 
property match is the normal criteria or no match funding requirement at all. 
Members should also note that the City Council’s capacity to plan, project manage 
and be the accountable body for projects has reduced in line with the Council’s 
financial position. 

 
2.4 Section 106 Contributions. With a reduction in the number of major planning 

applications and the viability of development schemes suffering as a result of the 
economic climate, there has been a reduction in the level of income to fund mitigation 
measures through Section 106 agreements but this has been sudden in 2012/13.  
Until then since 2008/9 income has remained steady at an average of £500k pa.  
Although this is not an easily forecasted income stream a certain trend analysis is 
evident.  With brown field development or schemes which require high infrastructure 
levels it is not uncommon for viability appraisals now to demonstrate that previously 
affordable contributions to travel and transport infrastructure can no longer be 
afforded.  Even commuted sums to help fund affordable housing schemes are being 
asked to be waived for brown field development.  There are currently pre application 
discussions taking place in relation to the majority of major brown field sites which in 
theory should give rise to a return to the normal level of section 106 contributions, 
however if viability issues remain key to whether a development can be afforded or 
not a lower level of contributions can be expected.   

 
2.5 Another major casualty of the current economic climate has been the potential to 

create a standard charging regime for Community Infrastructure Levy.  The levy 

Page 61



(commonly referred to as CIL) would enable pools of funds to be created to pay for 
identified infrastructure deficits in the district such as schools or community facilities.  
CIL regulations would allow a standard charge usually based on floor space in 
development schemes.  The creation of a CIL charge has to be undertaken using 
prescribed methodology as part of a Local Plan.  Part of the methodology requires 
councils to properly assess how viable a charge would be against realistic land and 
development values in an area.  This work has been carried out in association with 
the current work for the Lancaster District Local Plan.  The evidence has 
demonstrated that in the current economic climate a Community Infrastructure Levy 
would render development schemes unviable in all areas other than the high value, 
but undevelopable northern borders of the district.  There is currently no prospect of 
building a CIL fund therefore associated with new development.       

 
2.6 Reductions in Planning Fee income.   Between 2008 and the end of 2012 fee 

income has steadily reduced from £575k in 2008 to £350k anticipated for 2012/13.  
This has not simply been because of a general reduction in the number of planning 
applications.  Changes to fee structures to reduce costs for developers, for example 
reducing renewal fees to a small flat rate (for example £575 for major applications) 
has had a significant impact on fee income whilst having no impact on workload in 
individual cases.  In November 2012 fees were raised nationally by 15% to recognise 
the potentially detrimental impact of reduced fee income on capacity in planning 
services.  In April 2010 staffing levels in the former Planning Service were cut in 
recognition of reduced fee income.  An increase in non fee earning workload since 
that time and a general increase in complexity of applications has put the service 
under pressure and currently a number of temporary contracts are being operated to 
ensure that the significant number of development schemes in the pre application 
process can be nurtured with professional advice.   

 
2.7 The Building Control Trading Account.  The Council provides a Building Control 

service which is subject to competition from the private sector.  It has an element of 
statutory duties which have to be carried out at cost.  Its fee earning trading account 
relates to vetting applications for Building Regulations approval and inspecting 
building works.  In addition to a down turn in work associated with the economic 
climate, increased local competition has also had a significant impact on the trading 
account.  Building Regulations fee income of £403K in 2007/8 had reduced to 306K 
in 2009/10.  In 2010 staffing numbers were drastically reduced to address the deficit 
and a further abolition of two vacant posts now leaves only three officers providing 
this service.  Notwithstanding these actions fee income decreased to £116K in 
2011/12.  The time has come where the council will have to consider ending the 
provision of an independent building control service in the future and a report is being 
prepared to assess how this can be done and seek a decision on moving forward.    

 
2.8 To further reduce the number of planning controls the Government is consulting on 

proposals to increase the level of “Permitted Development Rights” for extensions to 
houses.  For a temporary period, potentially of up to three years, it is suggested that 
planning permission may no longer be needed for single storey extensions of 
between 4 and 6 meters in length.  The government believes that this will increase 
the incentive to build and assist in revitalising the construction industry.  Whilst this 
will also mean that further fee income (albeit in the cheapest categories of 
application) will be lost, it is your officers view that there will be a consequential 
increase in planning enforcement casework as low tolerance to such developments 
leads to an increase in enforcement complaints requiring investigation.   

 
2.9 Civil Engineering Projects.      The City Council is the riparian owner of Morecambe 

Promenade and also has a responsibility for land drainage regulation to assist the 

Page 62



County Council as Flood Management Authority.  This means that the Council’s 
small team of engineers can access funding from bodies such as the Environment 
Agency to maintain and improve coastal and flooding defences.  Access to funds has 
improved recently with £100k allocated to undertake a coastal strategy review and 
design works to repair the coastal defences in Morecambe.  A funding bid for £1.4m 
is in place for 2013/14 to start a phased programme for replacement of Morecambe’s 
wave reflection wall.   

 
3.0 Conclusions.     The economic down turn and the Government’s response to it 

through both the planning system and reductions in public expenditure (both capital 
and revenue) has had a significant impact on the Council’s income and capacity.  
This has meant adjustments to its ability to provide services in the area of Planning 
and Regeneration.  The level of business activity in this service area has not 
remained low during the recession however and current interest in development and 
investment in the area is at very high levels.  The dilemma for the Council is that if it 
is unable to provide expertise and capacity in this service area because of the need 
to reduce expenditure, it could have the effect of prejudicing the delivery of the very 
investment needed to effect economic recovery in the area.      

 
   

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The report highlights a number of areas which are facing financial uncertainty over 
the forthcoming years.  The latest approved budget (Council 27th February 2013) takes 
account of these concerns as far as possible and base budgets have been updated 
with the latest projections available.  
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The s151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to make. 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 

Contact Officer: Andrew Dobson 
Telephone:  01524 582303 
E-mail: adobson@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:   

 

Page 63



BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL  
 

 
Work Programme 
26 March 2013 

 
Report of Head of Governance 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To update members regarding the panel’s work programme. 
 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That members note the updated work programme as detailed in 

Appendix A to the report. 
  
(2) That members consider whether they would like to include any further 

items in the work programme. 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report provides members with recommendations for inclusion in the 

panel’s work programme and advises of possible upcoming items for 
consideration and work in progress. 

  
1.2 The Budget and Performance Panel is responsible for setting its own annual 

work programme within the terms of reference, as set out in Part 3, Section 
13 of the Constitution. 

 
2.0 Details 
 
2.1 Customer Comments, Compliments and Complaints Policy and Guidance 
 

Members are reminded that at its meeting on 6 November 2012, Cabinet had 
agreed the recommendations of the council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee made at its meeting on 10 October 2012 with regard to the revised 
Customer Comments, Compliments and Complaints Policy. It was reported 
that the committee had recommended: - 
 
‘That the Budget and Performance Panel be requested to undertake the 
performance monitoring of the complaints procedure.’ 
 
Following consultation with the Head of Environmental Services, it had been 
recommended that the issue be included on the panel’s work programme for 

Agenda Item 9 Page 64



consideration at its meeting scheduled for 5 March 2013. This was agreed by 
the panel at its meeting on 27 November 2012.  
 
The Head of Environmental Services has advised that officers were currently 
working on the details of compiling this report which would be report to the 
panel on a six-monthly basis commencing in 2013/14. As such it is expected 
that the first report will be presented to the panel in October 2013. 
 

2.2 Salt Ayre Sports Centre 
 

Members are reminded that at its meeting on 11 December 2012 the 
Assistant Head of Community Engagement (Wellbeing) had provided a report 
to update members on the social contribution Salt Ayre Sports Centre offered 
to the council and its partners.  
 
At that meeting it was advised that further information in relation to 
performance against regional and national benchmarking standards, and 
possible reductions against management and admin costs would be 
presented to the panel at a future meeting. 
 
The report is complex as it deals with comparative performance, human 
resource issues and financial savings and as such more time has been 
required to provide Budget and Performance Panel with a full picture. The 
report has been included in the panel’s work programme for consideration at 
this meeting scheduled for 26 March 2013.  

 
2.3 How the Current Economic Climate and Changes to Planning Legislation has 

Affected Revenue Coming into the Council 
 

At its meeting on 15 October 2012, the panel had resolved that the Chief 
Executive be requested to arrange for the appropriate officer to attend and 
report on how the current economic climate and changes to planning 
legislation had affected revenue coming into the council. This report has been 
included in the panel’s work programme for this meeting. 
 
Members are advised that this report also covers a request made by the 
panel on 15 October 2012 for more information relating to Section 106 
Monies and the introduction of new legislation, particularly concerning the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 

  
2.4 Building Control  

 
Members are reminded that at its meeting on 15 October 2012 the panel had 
resolved that the Chief Executive be requested to arrange for the appropriate 
officer to attend and report on Building Control, and that this be included in 
the panel’s work programme. 
 
Officers have been trying to establish how many options there are to vary the 
way the Council delivers this service and to reduce current losses in the 
Building Control Trading Account.   Until very recently there appeared to be 
no viable option of shared service provision with a neighbouring local 
authority.  Trading conditions have suddenly changed for neighbouring 
authorities and talks have opened to discuss new opportunities.  This will 
enable a report with more options for the Council to consider to be prepared 
in the near future. 

Page 65



 
A report will be provided to the panel once more information is available. 

  
2.5 Empty Houses, Voids, and why Properties are in Need of Repair 
 

Members are reminded that at its meeting on 15 October 2012 the panel had 
referred to the briefing note regarding Empty Houses, Voids, and why 
Properties are in need of Repair and had agreed that a report from an 
appropriate officer should be requested providing further information. 
Following consultation with the chairman it was agreed that the Head of 
Environmental Services be invited to a future meeting to discuss issues 
relating to empty houses, voids, and why properties are in need of repair with 
the panel.  
 
The Head of Environmental Services has been invited to attend a future 
meeting of the panel.  

 
2.6 Upcoming items 
 

• Details of upcoming items are included in Appendix A to the report. 
 
3.0 Conclusion 
 
3.1 Members are asked to consider whether they would like to include any further 

items in the work programme. 
 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The S151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 
 

Contact Officer: Tom Silvani 
Telephone: 01524 582132 
E-mail: tsilvani@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 66



 APPENDIX A 
 

BUDGET & PERFORMANCE PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 
2012/13 

 
 

Matter for 
consideration 

Officer responsible / 
External 

Date of 
meeting 

 
Empty Houses, Voids, and 
why Properties are in Need 
of Repair 

The Head of Environmental Services has 
been invited to discuss issues relating to 
empty houses, voids, and why properties 
are in need of repair with the panel.  

 

TBC 

Update Building Control 
Service Area  
 

Head of Regeneration and Planning TBC  

Budget 
Overspends/Variances 
 

As required As required 

 
 
Invitations to Cabinet Members 

 
Cabinet Member and area 

of responsibility 
 

Issue Date of meeting 

Councillor Sands (Cabinet Member 
for Arts and Culture) and Councillor 
Barry (Cabinet Member for Voluntary 
Sector) 

To discuss partnerships 
within their respective 
portfolios. 
 

TBC 

 
 
Briefing Notes 
 

Matter for consideration 
 

Date 
Circulated 

Officer 
responsible 

 
Lettings of Council Buildings  Head of Resources 

 
Shared Property Services with Lancashire 
County Council 

 Head of Resources 

 

Page 67


	Agenda
	5 Salt Ayre Sports Centre
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	6 Corporate Performance and Financial Monitoring - Quarter 3 2012/13
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	7 Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14
	Appendix 1

	8 The Effect of the Current Economic Climate and Changes to Planning Legislation on Related Revenue Coming into the Council
	9 Work Programme Report
	Appendix A


